FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Jet’s America, Inc.

37501 Mound Road
Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310
586-268-5870
Sales@jetspizza.com
www.jetspizza.com

The franchise being offered is for a restaurant serving pizza calzones, salads and other food,
primarily for carry-out and delivery under the name “Jet’s Pizza®.” The total investment necessary
to begin operation of a single Jet’s Pizza franchise ranges from $572,500 to $786,000. This
includes $30,000 (or $15,000 if you qualify for the 50% military discount) that must be paid to the
franchisor or affiliate.

The total investment necessary for an Area Development Agreement, assuming it allows for
development of three stores, is $75,000 (or $37,500 if you qualify for the 50% military discount),
which is in addition to the cost of each single franchise to be developed, which amount must be
paid to the franchisor or affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with
the proposed franchise sale or grant. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified
the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact our Sales Department
at 37501 Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310, (586) 268-5870, Sales@jetspizza.com.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to
Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or
visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 29, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you might be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about
outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You
should also try to obtain this information
from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and
contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits
D and E.

How much will 1 need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying
to the franchisor or at the franchisor’s
direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment
to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you
must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or Exhibit B includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of
the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Jet’s Pizza
business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in
the franchise agreement describe whether
the franchisor and other franchisees can
compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Jet’s Pizza
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits D and E lists current
and former franchisees. You can contact
them to ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you
should look for. Review all 23 Items and
all Exhibits in this disclosure document to
better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit H.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to

your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with us by litigation only in the judicial district in which we have our principal
place of business at the time the action is commenced, which is currently Michigan. Out-
of-state litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may
also cost you more to sue us in Michigan or a state other than in your own state.

2. Minimum Royalty. You must make minimum royalty and other payments,

regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in
termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) for your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document: 2025



ITEM 1:

ITEM 2:
ITEM 3:
ITEM 4:
ITEM 5:
ITEM 6:
ITEM 7:
ITEM 8:
ITEM 9:

ITEM 10:
ITEM 11:

ITEM 12:
ITEM 13:
ITEM 14:
ITEM 15:

ITEM 16:
ITEM 17:

ITEM 18:
ITEM 109:
ITEM 20:
ITEM 21:
ITEM 22:
ITEM 23:

Franchise Disclosure Document
Table of Contents

THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND

AFFILIATES ... 1
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE ... 3
LITIGATION. ..ot 4
BANKRUPTCY .o 4
INITIAL FEES ... 4
OTHER FEES ... .o 4
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT .....oooiiiii 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES.............. 10
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS ... 12
FINANCING. ...t 13
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER

SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING......cciiiiiiiiiiiec e 13
TERRITORY o 20
TRADEMARKS ... s 22
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION............. 26
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF

THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS........ccoiiii 26
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL ........c.cccoeeee. 26
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE

RESOLUTION ..ot 27
PUBLIC FIGURES. ..o 31
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS ... 31
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION .....ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiee 31
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ... 38
CONTRACTS .. 38
RECEIPTS .. 39

Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document 2025 Page i



EXHIBITS

AXRXC " IOTMMOO®T>
N -

DO vozr

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JET’S PIZZA OPERATIONS MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF CURRENT JET’S PIZZA, INC. FRANCHISEES AND AFFILIATES
LIST OF FORMER JET’S PIZZA, INC. FRANCHISEES

GUARANTY

RELATED PARTY CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

RELATED PARTY AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE

BUSINESS PURPOSE AFFIDAVIT

OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATE

SAMPLE FORMS OF TRANSFER AGREEMENTS

ROYALTY ADDENDUM FOR TRANSFER — FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
RENEWAL ADDENDUM - REMODELING REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL RELEASE UPON RENEWAL

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

STATE-SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES AND CONTRACT ADDENDA
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES AND RECEIPT

The information in this disclosure document, including any Exhibits, is the confidential property
of Jet’s America, Inc. This disclosure document is being provided to you for your use in
considering the purchase of a Jet’s Pizza restaurant franchise and for no other reason. Any other
use, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited.

Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document 2025 Page ii



Item 1: The Franchisor and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

Franchisor and Principal Business Address:

Jet’s America, Inc.
37501 Mound Road
Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “Jet’s” means Jet’s America, Inc., the
franchisor. Jet’s may also be referred to as the “Franchisor,” “we” or “us,” or with similar pronouns.
“You” means the person who buys the franchise. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, or other entity, your “Owners” means all of your stockholders, partners, members
or other owners.

Jet’s is a Michigan corporation and was incorporated on June 8, 1990. Jet’s conducts business as
“Jet’s America, Inc.” and as “Jet’s Pizza.”

Our affiliate is JAI Productions, Inc. Its principal business address is 37501 Mound Road, Sterling
Heights, Michigan 48310. JAI Productions, Inc. has been in business since 2018 and collects rebates
and processes payment for all of our franchise system items including the loyalty program, the
advertising retainer fee, and the database.

Our registered agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit O to this Disclosure Document.

Jet’s grants franchises certain rights to own and operate restaurants under the trade name “Jet’s Pizza,”
selling pizza, calzones, salads and other food to the public, primarily for carry-out and delivery. A
typical Jet’s Pizza restaurant is about 1,200 - 1,500 square feet, and is located in a strip shopping
center in a heavily populated urban or suburban area. Your competition will include a variety of pizza
and fast food restaurants, including national and regional chains, independent restaurants, and some
convenience stores.

If we approve you for a single Jet’s Pizza restaurant franchise, you will have the opportunity to
sign a franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) with us. Our current form of Franchise
Agreement is attached as Exhibit A to this Disclosure Document. Under the Franchise Agreement,
we grant you the right to operate a single Jet’s Pizza restaurant (“Restaurant”) at a location that we
approve (“Location”).

We own certain trademarks, services marks, trade names, domain names, logos, emblems and
other commercial symbols (collectively, the “Marks”). See Item 13 for further information
regarding the Marks.

You must operate your Restaurant using our franchise system (“Franchise System”), which is
described in the Franchise Agreement and the Jet’s Operations Manual (“Operations Manual”).
We may periodically change, improve, or further develop the Franchise System.

Jet’s also offers multi-unit development rights to qualified franchisees to develop a certain number
of Jet’s Pizza restaurants within a defined area according to a pre-determined development
schedule, as outlined in the terms of an Area Development Agreement. The Area Development
Agreement is found in Exhibit Q. You do not have to enter into any Franchise Agreements at the time
you enter into an Area Development Agreement. However, for each Restaurant you develop under the
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Area Development Agreement, you must sign our then-current form of Franchise Agreement that we
offer to new franchisees, the terms, and conditions of which may be substantially different from those
contained in the Franchise Agreement attached to this disclosure document (including, for example,
with respect to higher fees, shorter term, or other factors more burdensome to you).

The market for our products, and fast food restaurants in general, is very well developed and very
competitive. You will compete with other pizza restaurants, as well as other franchised, chain, or
independent restaurants offering similar items as Jet’s Pizza as well as a wide variety of other
foods.

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your Restaurant operations,
including health, sanitation, smoking, United States Department of Agriculture, Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration
regulations, Food and Drug Administration regulations on nutrition labeling of standard menu
items, other food and safety regulations, and anti-discrimination, employment, and sexual
harassment laws. The Americans with Disabilities Act requires readily accessible accommodations
for people with disabilities and therefore may affect some of your operations. You should consult
with your attorney concerning these and other laws and ordinances that may affect your Restaurant
operations.

You are responsible for all employment decisions of the Restaurant, including those related to
recruiting, hiring, firing, scheduling, training (other than the brand training required by the
Franchise Agreement), pay, benefits, personnel policies, record keeping, supervision, safety,
security, and discipline of all workers. Any information we provide about employment matters,
whether voluntarily or in response to your request, and whether provided directly or by means of
any technology tools, is a recommendation only and not intended to exercise control over your
employees, their wages, hours or working conditions, or the means and manner by which they
carry out their duties. You must clearly inform all workers, before hiring and periodically
thereafter, that you, and not Jet’s, is their employer and that Jet’s does not assume and will not
accept any employer, co-employer or joint employer obligations. You must indemnify us against
any claim that we are the employer, co-employer, or joint employer of any of your owners or
workers.

Jet’s began offering Jet’s Pizza franchises in 1990. It has not and does not offer franchises in any
other line of business, or engage in any other business, but reserves the right to do so in the future.

Jet’s has no parents, has no affiliates that offer franchises in any line of business, and has no
predecessors. Jet’s has no affiliates that provide products or services to the franchisees of
Franchisor.

Although it does not operate any locations or franchises directly, Jet’s has several affiliates that,
as of December 31, 2024, operate 56 Jet’s Pizza franchises similar to the franchised restaurants
being offered.

Apart from these franchises, neither we nor our affiliates do business under any name other than “Jet’s
America, Inc.,” or “Jet’s Pizza.” Neither we nor our affiliates offer, or have ever offered, any other
type of franchise.

Other than statutes and regulations applicable to food service establishments generally, there are no
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special regulations for the preparation and sale of pizza in your state. Under the general regulations
governing food service establishments, your employees may have to become certified food handlers.
To obtain certification, your employees may be required to attend instructional courses, pass tests
and pay a fee. You should check with city, township, and county regulatory agencies to determine
if certification will be required.

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your restaurant operations,
including health, sanitation, smoking, United States Department of Agriculture, Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration
regulations, other food and safety regulations, discrimination, employment, and sexual harassment
laws. The Americans with Disabilities Act requires readily accessible accommodations for people
with disabilities and therefore may affect some of your operations. You should consult with your
attorney concerning these and other laws and ordinances that may affect your restaurant
operations.

Item 2: Business Experience

President: John Jetts

2014-Present

John Jetts was vice president and a director of Jet’s since its incorporation in 1990, before
becoming president on December 5, 2014. After completing high school, he assisted Eugene Jetts
in the opening of Jetts Party Shop & Pizzeria in Sterling Heights, Michigan, in August 1978. He has
actively assisted in developing the Jet’s Pizza system. He has also been an officer and director of each
affiliate since its date of incorporation.

Secretary and Treasurer: Amanda Romeo

2014-Present

Amanda Romeo has been working with Jet’s since 2007. From 2011 to 2019, she was the
Accounting Manager for Jet’s. She was elected as Secretary and Treasurer of Jet’s on December
5, 2014, and has been serving as the Legal Secretary for Jet’s since 2019.

Vice President — Franchise Sales: James W. Galloway, Jr.

1994-Present

James W. Galloway, Jr. has worked on a part-time and occasional basis for Jetts Party Shop &
Pizzeria and various affiliates since 1978. In October 1986, he became an officer and director of our
affiliate, J.S. Investments, Inc., and has since become an officer and director of several other
affiliates. Jim has been a vice president of Jet’s since December 1993. Since March of 1994, Jim has
devoted his full time efforts to Jet’s.

Vice President — Store Operations: Jeffrey Galloway

1994-Present

Jeffrey Galloway has been a vice president of Jet’s since December 1993. He began working on a part-
time basis for Jetts Party Shop & Pizzeria, Inc. in 1982. In October of 1986, he became an officer
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and director of our affiliate, J.S. Investments, Inc., and has since become an officer and director of
several other affiliates.

Item 3: Litigation

Gregory Joseph Fekin v. Members of Kentucky #3, LLC., et al. (Macomb County Circuit Court,
Case No. 2021-001643-CB). On May 4, 2022, plaintiff brought a claim against Jet’s, two
Franchisor-owned franchises, as well as John Jetts, James Galloway, and Amanda Romeo in their
capacity as members or managers of the Franchisor-owned franchises, claiming willfully unfair
and oppressive conduct under 8 450.4515 of the Michigan Limited Liability Company Act, breach
of contract, and breach of fiduciary obligations in relation to plaintiff’s ownership in the
Franchisor-owned franchises. Jet’s was solely brought into the lawsuit on a breach of contract
claim related to the promissory note plaintiff had committed himself to paying in return for his
ownership in the Franchisor-owned franchises. Without an admission of wrongdoing, on
November 21, 2022 the parties entered into a confidential settlement agreement, which provided
in pertinent part that Jet’s would pay plaintiff $222,250.00 in exchange for a release of claims. The
case was dismissed on December 30, 2022.

Robert McDonald v. Jet’s America, Inc. (Case No. 2021 CH 00658, Circuit Court of Cook County,
Illinois). On February 10, 2021, plaintiff, on his own behalf and on behalf of other similarly
situated, filed a putative class action complaint against Jet’s, alleging violations of the Illinois
Biometric Information Privacy Act, 740 ILCS 14/1 et seq. and seeking monetary damages,
including an award of attorneys’ fees, and injunctive and other equitable relief. The lawsuit was
premised principally upon Jet’s alleged use of biometric identifiers (thumbprints) for employee
timekeeping purposes. The parties reached a settlement in principle in February 2022. Under the
settlement, Jet’s agreed to pay a total of $9,500, inclusive of all costs.

Item 4: Bankruptcy

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 5: Initial Fees

The initial franchise fee is $30,000; except for certain franchises established pursuant to an Area
Development Agreement as described above and for those franchisees which qualify for a military
discount. If a franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person who is in active duty or has served in
the military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably discharged, then the Initial Franchise
Fee will be $15,000, reflecting a 50% military discount. The initial franchise fee is due when you
sign the Franchise Agreement and is not refundable under any circumstances. The initial franchisee
fee may be waived at Jet’s discretion for certain affiliate stores.

If you acquire area development rights, you must pay an area development fee when you sign the Area
Development Agreement. The amount of the area development fee depends upon the number of
franchises that you will have the right to develop under the Area Development Agreement and
whether you qualify for 50% the military discount. Jet’s requires a $30,000 fee for the first franchise
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location, a $25,000 fee for the second location, a $20,000 fee for the third location, and a $15,000 fee
for any additional location. If you qualify for the military discount, Jet’s will require a $15,000 fee
for the first franchise location, a $12,500 fee for the second location, a $10,000 fee for the third
location, and a $7,500 fee for any additional location. Jet’s will grant the right to acquire a minimum
of three franchises under an Area Development Agreement, and the area development fee in this
circumstance is $75,000, or $37,500 for franchisees with the military discount. The area
development fee must be paid in full, and is fully earned, at the time the Area Development
Agreement is signed. In general, the area development fee includes the initial franchise fee for the
franchises opened under the Area Development Agreement, unless a franchisee is opening additional
franchises. The area development fees are not refundable under any circumstances.

Item 6: Other Fees

The following chart summarizes other fees imposed by us under the Franchise Agreement.

Fees to the General
Advertising Fund, when
established by Jet’s

Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee - 12% of Acquired Inventory; 15th day of | (Notes 1 and 2) Royalty
All franchisees minimum of $1,200 per month | each month | percentages are lower for
corporate-owned affiliate
locations. Jet’s corporate-
owned affiliates pay royalty
rates ranging from 1% to 12%.
Certain franchises operating
under a prior version of the
franchise agreement may pay a
lower fee.
Fees to the General | Up to 10% of Acquired 15th day of | Up to 10% of Acquired
Advertising Fund Inventory when added to the each month | Inventory when added to the
Technology Fee Technology Fee (Note 1 and
2).
Fees to the Formula to be determined by Weekly Jet’s currently has several
Regional Jet’s; currently regional advertising funds, one
Advertising 25¢ per box purchased for of which you would be
Fund ordinary expenses (for some required to join; each fund
regions) or a weekly flat fee establishes contribution rates,
ranging from $0 to $1,000.00. which are determined by Jet’s
Any additional amounts that and have no maximum; the
Jet’s requires for regional amount you contribute will
advertising initiatives (e.g., tv, count toward the total
social media, digital or radio minimum amount you must
ads). spend on advertising monthly.
Technology Fee Up to 10% of Acquired 15th day of | Up to 10% of Acquired
Inventory when added to the | each month | Inventory when added to the

Fees to the General
Advertising Fund; currently
not imposed, but can be
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Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
imposed on 90 days notice.
(Notes 1, 2 and 8)
Gift Card Program | Currently $30 - $99 Monthly Subject to increase or decrease
and Loyalty by the outside vendors which
Program administer the Programs. (Note
Administration 9)
Fees
Audit Cost of audit When billed | Payable only if an audit shows
an underpayment of royalties,
contribution required for
advertising, or any other fees,
of at least 5% of the correct
amount.
Training Fee for $1,000 per person, not Before The initial training of two
Additional Training | including training apparel training persons is included in the
(estimated cost of apparel is initial franchise fee; the
between $100-$200) training fee applies to each
additional person to be trained;
the fee is subject to change at
Jet’s discretion.
Additional Support | $30 per hour plus out-of-pocket | Estimated Jet’s hourly fee is subject to
expenses costs due change at Jet’s discretion.
before
support;
balance due
upon
submission
of invoice
Meetings, (Note 3) Before
Seminars, meeting,
Webinars, and seminar,
Training Programs webinar, or
program
Evaluation Fee $1,000, plus out-of-pocket Fee plus Jet’s will evaluate proposed
(Approval of New | expenses estimated new suppliers. The fee may be
Supplier) costs due paid by you or the proposed
before Jet’s | new supplier. The fee is
begins subject to change periodically
evaluation; | by Jet’s.
balance due
upon
submission
of invoice
Transfer Fee Up to $6,000 Before or at | The fee may be lower
time of depending on the complexity
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Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
transfer of the transfer.
Renewal Fee $4,000 Upon Certain franchises operating
renewal under a prior version of the
franchise agreement may pay a
lower fee.
Interest on Late Lower of 1.5% per month or Same as late | If you are an individual, you
Payments maximum rate fee or must sign a business purpose
allowed by law payment on | affidavit. A copy of the current
which it form of affidavit used by Jet’s
accrues is attached as Exhibit |
Administrative Fees | Up to $1,000 for minor Upon certain | (Note 4)
for Certain Defaults | defaults, but up to $30,000 for | defaults
other defaults
Liquidated $43,200 Upon (Note 5)
Damages termination
of Franchise
due to your
default
Late Payment Fee | 1.5% of the original amount Due Compensates Franchisor for
due, but not paid on time. immediately | increased costs due to the late
upon payment. (Note 4)
missing a
payment due
date.
Indemnification Will vary with circumstances | Asincurred | (Note 6)
Reimbursement of | Will vary with circumstances Within 15 (Note 7)
Monies Paid on days of
Behalf of request by
Franchisee Jet’s
Notes:
Unless otherwise noted, all fees or its formula is uniformly imposed.
1. “Acquired Inventory” means your cost for all inventory and supplies (including but not

limited to food ingredients, beverages, packages, cups, boxes, napkins, plastic ware, and cleaning
supplies) paid for during the reporting period. Jet’s uses a monthly reporting period but reserves the
right to require payment via pre-authorized electronic bank debit.

2. Except as otherwise noted, all fees are non-refundable and payable to us.

3. To date we have not charged any fees, but we reserve the right to charge a fee for certain
meetings, seminars, webinars, or training programs, and you would be responsible for your own costs
of attendance at such meetings, including but not limited to travel, meals, and lodging.

4. We may impose reasonable administrative fees of up to $1,000 for certain minor defaults
under the Franchise Agreement. For some more serious defaults, we may impose higher fees: such
as $5,000 for failure to comply timely with renewal conditions, $20,000 for a Disparagement Fee,
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and $25,000 in the event of a credit card breach. You must notify Jet’s immediately upon knowledge
of any activity that may trigger the Disparagement Fee. The current schedule of administrative fees
is attached as Schedule 5 to the Franchise Agreement. We may also impose a 10% late payment fee.
If you make more than two late payments to us in any 6-month period, we may require you to deposit
with us an amount equal to six times the last overdue payment.

5. If you default and we terminate your franchise, you must pay us within 30 days after the
termination effective date, liquidated damages of $43,200 to us for lost royalties that would have been
paid if the franchise had not been terminated (unless there are less than 36 months remaining in the
term of the Franchise Agreement, in which case the number of months multiplied by $1,200 will
equal the liquidated damages). Any liquidated damages we are entitled to only cover damages from
the loss of royalties, and do not cover other damages to which we may be entitled to pursue from
your other actions or inactions.

6. You must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless us, our employees, agents and attorneys, and
other franchisees, their employees, agents and attorneys, against any and all claims, liabilities, losses,
costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of your operations or activities
related to the franchise, its ownership of its assets, or its occupation of its premises.

7. You must pay to Jet’s, within 15 days of any written request by Jet’s which is accompanied
by substantiating material, any monies which Jet’s has paid, or has become obligated to pay, on your
behalf.

8. Currently, no Technology Fee is imposed, but Jet’s may institute a Technology Fee upon 90
days written notice to you in an amount up to 10% of your Acquired Inventory when added to the
Fees to the General Advertising Fund. (Section 6.8) The Technology Fee shall be used to fund
technology expenditures as determined by Jet’s and may include but are not limited to providing the
Franchise System with general assistance and guidance on Technology Systems, technology-related
matters, researching and developing new technologies such as hardware, software and cloud-based
services, network maintenance and upgrading, website internet/intranet capabilities and internal and
external data storage and archiving.

9. The monthly fees may be increased or decreased in the future to cover administrative costs,
at Jet’s discretion. These fees are currently counted towards your minimum monthly advertising
spending requirements, but Jet’s reserves the right to separate these fees from the minimum monthly
advertising spending requirements and charge the fees in addition to any other fee or spending
requirement.

Item 7: Estimated Initial Investment

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Item Amount Method of When Due To Whom Paid
Payment
Initial Franchise Fee* $15,000 or Lump sum At signing of Jet’s
$30,000 Franchise
Agreement
Travel and living $9,000 to As incurred During training | Airlines, hotels,
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Item Amount Method of When Due To Whom Paid
Payment
expenses while training $15,000 restaurants, car
rental, etc.
Security deposit (Note 1) | $4,000 to Lump sum Upon signing Landlord
$10,000 lease
Rent - 3 months (Note 1) | $7,500 to Monthly Monthly or Landlord
$20,000 according to
lease
Blueprints $10,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Architect
$15,000
Leasehold improvements | $300,000 to As incurred Before opening | Suppliers,
(Note 2) $400,000 contractors, etc.
Fixtures and equipment $175,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors
$225,000
POS System $20,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors
$30,000
Computer maintenance $1,500 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors, who
costs $2,000 are not affiliates
Miscellaneous opening $3,000 to As incurred Before opening | Suppliers,
costs (Note 3) $6,000 utility
companies
Opening inventory (Note | $12,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Suppliers and
4) $14,000 including
mandatory
beverages
Insurance (Note 5) $10,000 to Lump sum Before opening Insurance
$16,000 company
Working $60,000 As incurred As incurred Employees,
Capital/Additional funds - Jet’s
3 months (Note 6)
TOTAL (Notes 7, 8, &9) | $572,500 to
$786,000

* If the franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person in active duty or who has served in the
military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably discharged, then the Initial Franchise Fee
will be $15,000, reflecting a 50% military discount. Otherwise, the Initial Franchise Fee will be
$30,000.

If you are renewing your franchise, you will not incur most of these costs because your Jet’s Pizza
Franchise is already open. You must, however, make certain modifications and improvements to
your Jet’s Pizza Franchise to meet our current standards. The costs associated will depend on the
condition of your Jet’s Pizza Franchise.

Other Notes:
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1. This table assumes you will lease space for your Jet’s Pizza franchise. A new Jet’s Pizza
restaurant typically has 1,200 - 1,500 square feet and is located in a strip shopping center in a heavily
populated urban or suburban area. Rent varies widely depending upon local market conditions. Rent is
estimated to be $30,000 to $60,000 per year depending upon factors like the amount of space, condition,
and location of the leased premises, and whether you or your landlord will construct the interior of the
premises. The security deposit is estimated to be one or two months’ rent. Although we anticipate you
will lease space for your Jet’s Pizza franchise, it is possible that you may decide to buy real estate on
which a building suitable for the Jet’s Pizza franchise is already constructed or could be constructed.
Real estate costs depend on several factors, including location, size, visibility, economic and market
conditions, and the type of ownership interest being purchased. As such, this initial investment table
does not reflect the purchase of costs of real estate or of constructing a building suitable for the Jet’s
Pizza franchise.

2. Includes normal costs of installation of utilities and fees for building permits and inspections for
a typical commercial space. This does not include extraordinary costs that may be necessary due to
the age or condition of the building, or for water or sewer taps, which may be necessary in rare instances.
This also does not include fees that may be charged by local government departments and agencies,
which may vary greatly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. If you, as opposed to your landlord,
bear the cost of your leasehold improvements, the cost will tend toward the higher end of the range
in the table but your rent will tend toward the lower end of the range in the table; and vice versa if your
landlord bears the cost of your leasehold improvements.

3. Includes utility deposits and utility costs during improvements, the cost of organizing your
business, sales tax license and health department certification.

4. Opening inventory includes all of your opening inventory and supplies, including food
ingredients, beverages, packages, cups, boxes, napkins, plastic ware and cleaning supplies.

5. Includes worker’s compensation, personal property and public liability insurance, and
delivery and non-owned automobile insurance to cover employee vehicles used to pick up supplies and
deliver food. This figure represents the estimated cost for three months of coverage.

6. This includes estimated payroll costs, royalty fees, advertising, and assumes a typical level
of income, for the initial three months of business. These figures are estimates and Jet’s cannot
guarantee that you will not have additional expenses or a lower level of income in starting the business.
Your costs will depend on factors like how much you follow Jet’s methods and procedures, your
management skill, experience and business acumen, local economic conditions, the local market for our
product, the prevailing wage rate, the level of competition, and the sales level reached during the initial
period. We relied upon our previous experience with our affiliated Restaurants as well as those
franchisees who informed us of their experiences. These estimates involve Restaurants which follow
our grand opening and marketing plans.

Item 8: Restrictions on Sources of Products and Services

You must purchase all of your leasehold improvements, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, and
equipment (including pizza ovens, mixer, walk-in coolers, electronic cash register, computer
hardware and software, preparation tables and utensils, and signs), inventory (food ingredients as well
as packaging and paper products) and supplies (including advertising materials) according to
specifications set by Jet’s and from approved suppliers. See Item 11 for more detail regarding required
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computer hardware and software. We have total discretion to limit the suppliers with whom you deal
with respect to your Jet’s Pizza Franchise. We restrict your sources to protect our trade secrets, assure
quality and a reliable source of products meeting our standards. You must purchase the signs that
you will need for your Restaurant from an approved supplier.

Currently, Jet’s sole supplier for soda and other drinks available for purchase in stores or online is
PepsiCo (“Pepsi”). Jet’s also utilizes Zimmerman Advertising LLC (“Zimmerman”), a marketing
agency, as its provider of nationwide marketing and advertising services. Jet’s reserves the right to
change either of these suppliers for any reason at any time.

Jet’s gift card program is exclusively administered and processed by Valuetec Card Solutions, LLC.

We will require you to purchase certain items in the Technology System (defined in Item 11) from
supplier(s) approved or designated by us. This designation may include the manufacturer or developer
as well as the model number or other similar designation. If we name a designated supplier(s) for
certain Technology System items, alternate suppliers will not be acceptable. We require you to use
our approved suppliers for a Technology System which provides online ordering services to
customers.

Neither Jet’s nor any of its affiliates is currently an approved supplier of any items, but Jet’s reserves
the right to do so in the future. No officer of Jet’s owns any interest in an approved supplier.

Franchisees may only utilize suppliers that have been approved by Jet’s, in Jet’s sole discretion.
Franchisor will only consider approving additional or new suppliers in unusual circumstances, at the sole
cost of the requesting franchisee, regardless of whether or not the proposed supplier is approved. In order
to petition Jet’s for approval of a new supplier, you and the proposed new supplier must execute an
Application for Approval of Supplier, which lists general standards for suppliers. Depending upon the
goods or services for which approval is requested, there may be additional criteria or specifications
which will be made available to the proposed new supplier. The proposed new supplier will have to
execute a confidentiality agreement and provide Jet’s with appropriate information and samples for
testing. You or the proposed new supplier will have to pay an evaluation fee (see Item 6) to Jet’s and
reimburse Jet’s for any out-of-pocket costs. Jet’s current evaluation fee is $1,000, but is subject to
change. Jet’s review will typically take no more than 60 days. Supplier approval depends on a number
of factors, including product or service quality, reliability, standards, financial capability, and customer
relations. Moreover, approval of a new supplier may be conditioned upon its agreement to pay rebates
(see below regarding usage of supplier rebates), and its execution of a supply agreement with terms and
conditions required by Jet’s. Upon approval of a new supplier as to specified goods or services, you
may immediately begin to purchase the goods or services from the new supplier. A supplier’s approved
status may be revoked for any breach or failure to fulfill our supplier standards or criteria or our
specifications for particular goods or services. We have no obligation to approve any request for a new
supplier or service. Jet’s supplier standards, supplier approval and its criteria and specifications for
goods and services may be changed from time to time by Jet’s, subject to its sole discretion. Such
changes may result in additional cost to you.

As described in Item 6, Jet’s charges royalty fees to franchisees based on the percentage of Acquired
Inventory (inventory and supplies) that the franchisees purchased from suppliers. According to our
audited financial statements, in 2024, Jet’s total revenue was $30,792,504.00 which included
$13,172,520.00 of royalty revenue (based on Acquired Inventory purchases) and $445,334.00 of
franchise fees and other revenue. Accordingly, 43% of Jet’s total revenues was derived from
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franchisees’ purchases of Acquired Inventory.

Jet’s earns rebates from suppliers based on the volume of purchases by franchised locations. In 2024,
Jet’s earned $4,670,643.33 through rebates, which represents approximately 15% Jet’s total revenues
in 2024.

Jet’s negotiates with some suppliers to obtain the lowest possible cost for purchases by franchisees
and may negotiate to receive rebates from suppliers. Supplier rebates will in all cases be applied to
benefit franchisees generally. Supplier rebates are currently being allocated to JAI Productions, Inc.
for advertising and marketing purposes that promote the Franchise System. Jet’s reserves the right to
change how supplier rebates are handled.

Within 10 days after your location has been selected, approved, and secured by lease or purchase,
Jet’s will provide you with its specifications and list of approved suppliers. These required purchases
will represent about 100% of the costs you will incur to open the restaurant for business, and about
45% of your expenses on an ongoing basis. There are no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We
do not provide material benefits to a franchisee based on its purchase of particular products or
services, or the use of particular suppliers.

If you occupy the Location under a lease, you must ensure that Schedule 4 to the Franchise
Agreement, the Standard Lease Rider, has been entered into by all parties, and a new Standard Lease
Rider is executed upon any changes to, or assignments of, the lease. Jet’s may require that you
provide Jet’s with a copy of the lease agreement for its written approval. Our approval is not an
endorsement of the legal or business terms of the lease. We can require, as a condition of our
approval, that the lease contain certain terms and conditions.

You must maintain a competent and conscientious staff who have been trained in product preparation
and general business operations in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Jet’s Operations
Manual, and who meet required governmental health and employment standards.

You must participate in any promotional programs (including physical or electronic gift card
programs and/or loyalty programs) implemented by us, at your sole cost and expense, from time to
time. This may include offering rebates, giveaways, delivery services, products and other
promotional items related to such programs. In addition, it includes your obligation, at your sole cost
and expense, to lease or otherwise procure any software, hardware or other items needed to
participate in such promotional programs, and in compliance with the requirements as may be set
forth in the Operations Manual and from our designated supplier(s). The Operations Manual will
establish any and all rules, guidelines, standards and specifications for these programs. However,
you must not create or participate in any loyalty programs not authorized by us in writing.

Currently, we operate a customer loyalty program called Jet’s Rewards. Under the Jet’s Rewards
Program, customers can earn points each time they make a purchase. The accrued points can then
be redeemed by the customer for free items or delivery service for subsequent purchases, which items
and delivery services you will be required to provide at your sole cost and expense.

You must also comply with the restrictions imposed on your advertising as set forth in Section 7 of
the Franchise Agreement, including online advertising as set forth in Section 7.6 of the Franchise
Agreement.
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Item 9: Franchisee’s Obligations

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in
other items of this Disclosure Document.

Section(s) of

Section(s) of Area Disclosure
Obligation Franchise Document
Agreement Development Item(s)
Agreement
a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease 2.2 2.2 21,3
b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases 5 Not Applicable | 7, 8
c.  Site development and other pre-opening |5 2.2,2.7,2.8 6,7,8, 11
requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 54,6.4 N/A 6, 11
e. Opening 5.7,5.8 N/A 11
f.  Fees 4,5.1,5.4, 23,24 5,6
6.5,6.7,7,
8.4,13.2,
14.2, 15.3,
15.4,
Schedule 1,
Schedule 5
g. Compliance with standards and 2.2,5,6,8 2.7,3,4 11
policies/operating manual
h.  Trademarks and proprietary information | 6, 10, 11 4 13,14
i.  Restrictions on products/services offered | 6.5 2.7,4.2,5 16
J. Warranty and customer service 6.1, 6.5 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
requirements
k.  Territorial development and sales quotas | N/A 2.2 Not Applicable
I.  Ongoing product/service purchases 6.5, 6.7 Not Applicable | 8
m. Maintenance, appearance and 6.1, 6.5, 6.7 Not Applicable | 11
remodeling requirements
n. Insurance 9 Not Applicable | 7
0. Advertising 6.6, 7 Not Applicable | 6, 11
p. Indemnification 9.5 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
g. Owner’s participation/management/ 54,9 Not Applicable | 11, 15
staffing
r.  Records and reports 54,648 Not Applicable | 11
s.  Inspections and audits 8 Not Applicable | 6
t.  Transfer 8.7-9, 13, 6.2 17
15.7
u. Renewal 3 Not Applicable | 17
v.  Post-termination obligations 15.2, 15.6, 5 17
15.7
w. Non-competition covenants 12 5 17
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Section(s) of Section(s) of Disclosure
L . Area
Obligation Franchise Document
Development
Agreement Item(s)
Agreement
X.  Dispute resolution 18.3-8 8.3 17
y.  Promotional Programs 6.5,6.7, 7.8 Not Applicable | 8,9, 11
z.  Reimbursement of Monies paid on 4.6 Not Applicable | 6,9
behalf of Franchisee
aa. Employee Policy 6.3 Not Applicable | 8,9
bb. Websites; Domain Names; Electronic 6.6 Not Applicable | 8,9, 11
Marketing

Item 10: Financing

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or obligation.

Item 11: Franchisor’s Assistance, Advertising, Computer Systems, and Training

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

The following applies with respect to each Franchise Agreement, whether signed as a “stand-alone”
agreement or under an Area Development Agreement.

Pre-Opening Obligations

We will provide you with our site selection criteria for your Jet’s Pizza Franchise, and upon your
finding a suitable location which meets the site selection criteria to our satisfaction, approve your
location. Jet’s does not engage in the practice of owning premises and leasing them to franchisees.
Jet’s does not provide assistance with conforming the premises to local ordinances and building
codes and obtaining any required permits. If requested, we may use reasonable efforts to help you
analyze potential sites and determine site feasibility. It is your responsibility to locate a Jet’s Pizza
Franchise site that satisfies our site selection criteria. Factors Jet’s would typically consider in
approving a site include demographic information, pedestrian and automobile traffic patterns, the
presence of competitive or complementary businesses in the area, conditions of the local economy,
viability of the store, availability of parking and zoning requirements. You are encouraged to engage
your own expert to assist in site selection. Jet’s has 21 days after request for approval by a franchisee
to approve or disapprove a proposed location in its sole discretion. (Section 2.2(a)) Once your
location has been determined, your territory and advertising territory will encompass an area with a
radius of one and one-half (1%2) miles from the location, except that in New York City, New York,
Chicago, Illinois, or any other city having a population of over one million people, the radius of the
territory is one-quarter (¥4) of a mile. (Sections 2.2(d) and 7.1) You are encouraged to engage your
own expert, such as a lawyer, to assist in lease negotiations. (Section 2.2(c)) If you are unable to
locate a site that is acceptable to us and secure it with a lease within 90 days, or if your restaurant is
not ready to open for business within twelve months, after the Franchise Agreement is signed, Jet’s
may cancel the Franchise Agreement by written notice to you. (Section 5.5)

We will provide you with specifications for leasehold improvements, fixtures, equipment, furniture,
furnishings, and sample layouts of the design of the restaurant, and a list of approved suppliers for
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these items. (Sections 5.2, 5.3, 6.5) Jet’s must approve the blueprints for the construction or
remodeling of your restaurant, and once construction or remodeling is complete, Jet’s must inspect
and approve your restaurant for conformance with the blueprints and Jet’s specifications. (Section
5.3). Jet’s does not provide assistance with constructing, remodeling, or decorating the premises.

We will specify approved and mandatory menu items, and will provide you with instructions for
their preparation. (Section 6.5)

We will provide you with an electronic copy of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual. (Section 5.6)

Jet’s does not provide assistance with hiring. We will train two restaurant managers. (Section 5.4)
There is no fee for two persons to participate in the initial training program; this is included in the
initial franchise fee. However, training apparel is not included and will not be provided, and any
additional training requirements will be subject to fees. You must also pay and arrange for lodging,
food, and transportation.

The above-listed services may be provided by a third-party agent appointed by us.

We estimate it will be eight to twelve months after you sign the Franchise Agreement and pay the
initial franchise fee before you open the Restaurant, but the timeframe could be longer depending on
your diligence in the site selection and leasing processes and factors such as the existing market
conditions, securing building permits and zoning approvals, and construction delays.

Continuing Obligations

Jet’s will provide a representative to assist you at your restaurant — at a minimum — approximately
eight hours per day for three days at a time scheduled by you and Jet’s, but not later than the grand
opening of your restaurant. Jet’s marketing and support program for out-of- state franchises in new
market areas is under constant review and development.

Jet’s may, in its sole discretion, provide ongoing support and consultation concerning the operations
of the restaurant, via personal visits, telephone, mail, computer or other means of communication.
(Section 6.4)

Upon request, Jet’s will train a replacement manager if one of your trained managers quits or is
terminated. You must pay Jet’s the current fee for the training program. (Section 5.4)

Subject to the availability of qualified personnel, Jet’s may provide, in its sole discretion, additional
support and training for an hourly fee plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. The current
hourly fee is $30 per hour, but is subject to change. Two persons must be trained at all times at each
location. (Section 6.4)

Jet’s may hold meetings, seminars, webinars, or training programs for franchisees, may designate
certain meetings, seminars, webinars, or programs as mandatory, and although it has never done so
to date, may charge a fee for any meetings, seminar, webinar, or program. (Section 6.4) You must
pay for your own costs of attending any meeting, seminar, webinar or program, including travel,
meals and lodging.

In the State of Tennessee, the above-listed services may be provided by a third-party agent appointed
by us.
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Jet’s Advertising Program

You must spend a minimum per month of $3,800 on your own local advertising initiatives and for
contributions required by any regional advertising fund. In addition, you are required to pay the
General Advertising Fee. (Section 7.2, Schedule 7.3 and Schedule 1)

All advertising materials, whether written or electronic, are subject to the prior written approval of
Jet’s. Advertising materials includes, but is not limited to, video, applications, email, or any other
form of media intended for the general public. All forms of advertising must be submitted to Jet’s
for approval via email to approvals@jetspizza.com. We request up to three business days to review
and provide feedback and/or approval. If you advertise with a new vendor, that vendor must complete
and sign a Limited License Agreement in order to use our trademarks, logos, etc.

You may advertise only in your own advertising territory, subject to restrictions and guidelines we
may impose periodically. If another franchisee is in close proximity, you must use reasonable efforts
to coordinate the advertising with the other franchisee, or to conduct joint advertising. We may
prescribe measures to limit any adverse impact upon other franchisees or the franchise system as a
whole, such as requiring a prominent notice on printed material to the following effect: “GOOD
ONLY AT XYZ LOCATION.”

We are not obligated to spend any amounts on advertising in your area or territory, or to make
expenditures for franchisees which are equivalent or proportionate to the franchisee’s contribution,
or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from the advertising or
promotion conducted by us, or to conduct any other advertising for the franchise system.

The Franchise Agreement appoints the Franchisor to make advertising decisions for your benefit
with respect to monies allocated to the General Advertising Fund, including the power to negotiate
arrangements with advertising agencies and to authorize the expenditure of funds held by the General
Advertising Fund to pay for third party advertising services and marketing campaigns. The amounts
contributed to the General Advertising Fund are made for advertising services and marketing
campaigns that benefit you; the General Advertising Fund holds the funds received and serves as a
conduit to pay the Franchisor and other third parties who will provide the actual services that benefit
franchisees. There currently is no advertising council composed of franchisees that advises us on
advertising policies.

General Advertising Fund. Although not currently required of franchisees, you may be required in
the future to contribute to the General Advertising Fund. (Section 7.3)

Under your Franchise Agreement, you are required to contribute an amount, when combined with
the Technology Fee, of up to 10% of your Acquired Inventory to the General Advertising Fund. Our
affiliates who operate Jet’s Pizza franchises are also required to contribute on the same basis as all
other Restaurants.

Jet’s may use monies in the General Advertising Fund only for advertising and promotional
expenses, including production, administrative costs, social media, advertising agency fees, and IT
programs and enhancements facilitating ordering, sales and promotions. Jet’s may also use the
General Advertising Fund for media costs only if reasonably intended to benefit Jet’s Pizza
restaurants and the Franchise System generally, such as a national radio or television advertising
program.
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The General Advertising Fund must be used for advertising and promotional expenditures directed
primarily at customers of one or more Jet’s Pizza restaurants. Jet’s may not use the General
Advertising Fund for any advertising activities directed primarily at prospective franchisees.

We maintain the General Advertising Fund monies in an account separate from our monies and will
not use them to defray our expenses, except for such reasonable costs and overhead as we may incur
in activities reasonably related to the administration of the General Advertising Fund and direction
of advertising programs, including costs of personnel (inhouse or third parties) for creating and/or
implementing advertising, promotional, and marketing programs, and as described in this disclosure
document. Any monies collected by the General Advertising Fund, and any earnings on them, will
not otherwise inure to our benefit. We anticipate spending all the General Advertising Fund monies
during the year within which the contributions are made. If, however, excess amounts remain at the
end of the year, we anticipate that all expenditures in the following year will be made first out of
accumulated earnings from the previous year, next out of earnings in the current year, and, finally,
from current contributions. If there is a deficit at the end of the year, we will apply receipts in the
following year to the deficit until it has been eliminated.

We prepare an annual financial statement of the General Advertising Fund using generally accepted
accounting principles and will make it available to you. The General Advertising Fund’s books and
records are audited annually and we will also make the audit report available to you. You may review
a copy of the financial statement and/or the audit report at our office upon reasonable request.

In 2024, the General Advertising Fund’s expense were as follows: 89.8% media costs, 8.2% for
production costs, 0.7% sponsorship, 1.3% administrative costs.

Regional Advertising Funds. Jet’s may, from time to time, in its discretion, establish a regional
advertising program in a geographical region established by Jet’s, which may be a designated
marketing area (“DMA”) or other area when it determines there are enough Jet’s Pizza restaurants
in an area to realize economies of scale for marketing and advertising or other purposes. (Section
7.4)

Jet’s currently has nineteen regional funds. Jet’s has the discretion to determine the boundaries of
the region, and may change the boundaries periodically, merge two or more regions into a single
region, or split a region into multiple regions. All Restaurants located in a region for which a
regional advertising fund is established, including those owned by affiliates who operate Jet’s
Pizza franchises, must participate in and contribute to the applicable regional advertising fund.
Jet’s establishes a contribution formula for each regional advertising fund, which shall apply
uniformly to all Jet’s Pizza restaurants in the region.

Your payments to a regional advertising fund will apply toward your obligation to spend a minimum
of $3,800 per month on advertising. Jet’s currently engages Zimmerman to provide advertising and
marketing services, and Zimmerman is paid through the regional fund contributions. Currently, the
contribution formula in each regional advertising fund is 25¢ per box sold or a weekly contribution
ranging from $0 to $1,000.00. The contribution for each advertising region is set forth in Schedule 1
(Fees).

The legal structure of a regional advertising funds is at the discretion of Jet’s, and may include a
corporation, cooperative or unincorporated association. Currently, the regional advertising funds are
unincorporated nonprofit associations. Each of the regional advertising funds is governed by a board
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of directors appointed by Jet’s, and Jet’s administers each regional advertising fund. Each regional
advertising fund conducts its operations based on its written governing document or bylaws, which
are available for you to review. Regardless of the type of entity or future changes in the structure of
aregional advertising fund, the structure would contemplate an opportunity to participate in decision-
making by franchisee representatives regarding advertising matters and the expenditure of funds.

All funds from the regional advertising funds are used for advertising intended for the primary benefit
of Jet’s Pizza restaurants located in the contributing regions. Jet’s may not use any regional
advertising funds for any advertising activities directed primarily at prospective franchisees. Upon
request, Jet’s or the regional advertising program will provide financial statements to its franchisees
at least annually, which are available for you to review. These statements are not required to be
audited. Jet’s utilizes multiple advertising channels to drive sales at the regional level including
digital, print, and linear television.

Jet’s uses an advertising agency to help develop its advertising materials. Jet’s reserves the right to
change the advertising agency or to stop using an agency. Jet’s also uses an agency for internet
advertising and electronic marketing mediums. You may not utilize any such electronic marketing
mediums, or engage or hire any advertising agency or social media company, without Jet’s prior
written authorization. Authorization is subject to change per Jet’s discretion. Jet’s has the right to
require you to participate in any such electronic marketing mediums. (Section 6.6)

Jet’s may implement certain promotional programs (including gift card programs and/or loyalty
programs) for its franchisees. You must participate in and act in accordance with any such policies
or procedures prescribed by Jet’s for such promotional programs. (Section 7.8)

Jet’s negotiates for rebates from its suppliers. All rebates are collected by JAI Productions, Inc. and
used for marketing and advertising purposes to promote the Franchise System. Jet’s reserves the right
to change the use of the rebates.

Gift Card Program

You are also required to participate in the gift card program administered by the Franchisor under an
exclusive services agreement with Valutec Card Solutions, LLC, a third-party gift card issuer. The
"Gift Card" is an electronic cash card available for purchase and redemption at any Jet’s Pizza
Restaurant, including yours, for use as a gift certificate or other purchase credit purposes for food
and beverage purchases. Customers may also increase or replenish balances available on the Gift
Card. Customers may redeem the balance (or any portion thereof) on the Gift Card for food and
beverage purchases. To defray the expenses of administering the Gift Card program, your Restaurant
may be charged a setup fee of $99, a monthly flat fee of $30 plus additional transaction-based fees,
which fees may be increased or decreased in the future, at the Franchisor’s discretion. This fee is
currently counted towards your minimum monthly advertising spending requirements, but
Franchisor reserves the right to separate this fee from the advertising spending requirement and
charge the fee in addition to any other fee or spending requirement. The funds collected by the
Franchisor for the Gift Card program, and any earnings, are not and will not be, an asset of us or any
franchisee. All assets and earnings of the Gift Card program will be applied to administer the Gift
Card program, including production and distribution of the Gift Cards, promoting the program to
consumers and processing transactions. The Operations Manual will establish any and all rules,
guidelines, standards and specifications for this program.
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Technology Requirements

We have the right to specify or require that you purchase, lease and use certain vendors, brands,
types, makes, and/or models of commercial grade communications equipment, routers, computer
systems, Internet-connected devices, and other hardware, including: (a) a point of sale (“POS”)
computer system; (b) video or security system; (c) other electronic system, device, product or service,
(d) computers, equipment, hardware, software, cloud-based services; () communication devices and
tablets; () internet service providers and connections, (g) online ordering systems or services (which
permits customers to place, track or pay for orders using the Internet or other electronic media)
payment processing systems; (g) high speed broadband connectivity, high speed broadband
monitoring, methods and means of encryption and access to Franchisor’s network resources, and (h)
other brand technology and peripheral devices as Franchisor may specify, update or modify from
time to time in the Operations Manual (collectively, the “Technology System”). Upon your request
we will provide you with current information regarding our approved providers.

The initial cost to purchase a POS computer system ranges from $20,000 to $30,000 per Restaurant.
You will be required to install the POS System we designate. The currently designated POS system
includes various computer hardware and software components and programs, including terminals,
communication software, monitors, printers, and payment processing software which records and
reports all sales, payments, discounts, inventories, purchases, and accounting data. You must also
have a functioning email address so that we can send you notices and other electronic
communications. It is your responsibility to ensure you have proper security applications and
controls in place that include but are not limited to anti-virus software and complex passwords for
logon accounts. Due to rapidly advancing technology, there may be additional costs to update or
replace such POS computer system going forward, as may be determined by Jet’s or the franchisee.
Jet’s reserves the right to require you to replace your POS computer system as frequently as every
three years and update your POS computer system as often as needed, in Jet’s sole discretion.

Jet’s may require a franchisee to purchase new equipment or otherwise remodel its Restaurant to
comply with changes in the franchise system, which may include requirements to upgrade or update
your computer system. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency or cost of doing so, but in
no event will you be required to comply with any changes more than once per year. (Section

6.5(c)(ii))

It is mandatory for you to keep your Technology System in good maintenance and repair, and to
purchase support or maintenance contracts on your system. A typical support contract with supplier
for maintenance, updating, support and software upgrades can range in cost from $1,500 to $4,500
per year.

We also have the right at any time to independently retrieve and/or remove and use data and
information that we deem necessary or desirable from your Technology System. There are no
contractual limitations on our right to access the information and data. All data provided by you,
uploaded to our system from your system, and/or downloaded from your system to our system, is
owned exclusively by the Franchisor, and we will have the right to use the data in any manner that
we deem appropriate without compensating you. In addition, all other data that you create or collect
in connection with the Technology System, or in connection with operation of the Restaurant
(including consumer and transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by the Franchisor during
the term of, and following termination or expiration of, the Franchise Agreement. You must provide
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copies and/or originals of such data to us upon request. We may license use of such data back to you
solely for the term of the Franchise Agreement and solely for your use in connection with the
establishment and operation of the Restaurant. You are responsible for safeguarding any and all data
licensed back to you.

You must abide by all privacy and data protection laws pertaining to the collection, use, processing,
integrity, security, transfer of, consumer access to, correction of, and deletion of personally
identifiable information. You must ensure that any personally identifiable information is collected
only with express or implied consent of the data subject and that all data to be shared with or
transferred to the Franchisor has been collected in compliance with a privacy policy that allows such
sharing or transfer.

We specifically require that you implement the most recent security requirements that the PCI
Security Standards Council, LLC or its successor requires of a merchant that accepts payment by
credit and/or debit cards or other mobile payment methods (the Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards or “PCI/DSS”). The PCI/DSS may require you to purchase a firewall or other new
hardware and to have an independent third party conduct a PCI/DSS audit as and when required by
the standards. You must use our approved vendors for PCI/DSS audits. The PCI Security Standards
Council, LLC or its successor may revise the PCI/DSS standards at any time; we do not have control
over the timing or substance of any changes. Compliance with PCI/DSS is a minimum requirement
of your franchise and does not guarantee that no security breach will occur.

You must upgrade the POS System or other Technology System item as designated by us from time
to time. We may require you to replace the POS System or other Technology System every 3 years.
We will require you to update or replace software or cloud-based services used by the POS System
or other Technology System as directed by us, which may be on a more frequent basis than every 3
years. Although we cannot estimate the future costs of any Technology System item or required
service or support, you must incur the costs of obtaining such Technology System item (and additions
and modifications) and required service or support. Within 90 days after we deliver notice to you,
you must obtain Technology System components we designate and ensure that your Technology
System, as modified, is functioning properly.

In the event that Jet’s requires you to obtain, install, and operate a video or security camera system
in your restaurant, Jet’s reserves the right to access such footage if it should so decide.

Technology Fee. Jet’s may institute a Technology Fee upon 90 days written notice to you in an
amount up to 10% of your Acquired Inventory when added to the Fees to the General Advertising
Fund. (Section 6.8) The Technology Fee shall be used to fund technology expenditures as determined
by Jet’s and may include but are not limited to providing the Franchise System with general
assistance and guidance on Technology Systems, technology-related matters, researching and
developing new technologies such as hardware, software and cloud-based services, network
maintenance and upgrading, website internet/intranet capabilities and internal and external data
storage and archiving. Whether or not we collect the Technology Fee from you, you are required
(and the Technology Fee does not cover) the amounts you will need to spend on Technology
Systems, which are in addition to the Technology Fee. Jet’s shall have complete discretion as to the
use and allocation of the amounts collected from Technology Fee payments, which may be used for
payment of salaries, wages and benefits, direct program costs and/or overhead expenses related to
the above-described activities. With respect to the collection, use or expenditure of the Technology
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Fee, Jet’s has no obligation to: (i) do so from you or any other franchisee; (ii) ensure equivalent or
proportionate collection, use or expenditures; (iii) ensure that you or your Restaurant benefits
directly, pro rata or at all from the Technology Fee; or (iv) provide an accounting to you or any
franchisee.

Operations Manual.

Jet’s will provide you with an electronic copy of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual or other manuals,
bulletins, policy statements or similar announcements. (Section 5.6) From time to time, Jet’s, in its
sole discretion, may revise the Operations Manual through written communications sent to its
franchisees. In case there is a dispute over its content, our master copy of the Operations Manual
controls. A copy of the table of contents from the current Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual is attached
as Exhibit C. The Operations Manual contains approximately 217 pages. The number of pages
devoted to each subject is as follows: Preface (1); Jet’s Pizza Mission Statement and Guiding
Principles (1); Terms and Definitions (1); Trademarks (2); Policy Against Disparagement and
Unauthorized Use or Display of Brand and Marks (2); Pre-Opening General Considerations
(2);Insurance (2); Pre-Opening Purchases (2); Inventory (2); Training and Support (2); Advertising
(2); Restaurant Operations (5); Charges and Discounts (2); Cleaning (3); Inspections (2); Customer
Satisfaction (2); Safety and Health Concerns (4); Management (11); Security (3); Default and
Remedies (2); Miscellaneous (1). Appendices, including recipes, food preparation instructions, etc.
(154).

Training Program

The initial training program through Jet’s Pizza University begins with training in a classroom setting,
followed by full-time, hands-on, on-the-job training at one or more Restaurants operated by Jet’s or
an affiliate, as well as online video lessons. Training is conducted six days per week for six
consecutive weeks, for a total of three hundred hours in the store. We conduct our initial training
program approximately 5 times a year (or more frequently, if needed). Currently, all training
(including training of franchisees located outside of Michigan) will be conducted at one of our
affiliate locations in Michigan, unless Jet’s is able to organize an alternative location in a more
convenient place. Jet’s will select the Restaurants at which training will take place. Training materials
include video lessons, excerpts from the Operations Manual and food preparation cards. Most of the
trainers and business coaches providing training have been with the company for 3 or more years. A
representative of Jet’s is primarily in charge of overseeing the training program. Two persons must
complete the training program satisfactorily to Jet’s by the time your restaurant is ready to open for
business, but no later than within nine (9) months after the date of your Franchise Agreement, or Jet’s
may cancel your franchise. If you wish additional persons to be trained, you must pay a training fee,
which is currently $1,000 per person, as stated in Item 6. You must pay for all travel, meals, lodging
and other expenses you may incur in attending training. We currently do not require any additional
training, yet reserve the right to require such additional training.

TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject Hours of Classroom | Hours of On the Job Location
Training* Training*

Dough Counts 2 25 See below

Preparation of dough 2 60 See below
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Subject Hours of Classroom | Hours of On the Job Location
Training* Training*

Prep List Inventory 1 10 See below
Prep Work (vegetables, 2 15 See below
cheese, sauce, toppings,
bread, etc.)
POS computer 4 30 See below
(Phones/order taking,
Register position)
Salads 1 15 See below
Make Line (lead, sauce, 3 70 See below
cheese, top, oven time)
Cut Side (cut and box, 2 50 See below
wings, topping products,
etc.)
Scheduling 1 10 See below
Monthly Inventory 1 5 See below
Food Ordering 1 8 See below

*These hours are estimates; actual training time per topic may vary.

Throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement, you or a principal or an individual you
designate, at your expense, are required to attend all meetings, seminars and conferences we may
specify as mandatory, including regional and national meetings, meetings related to new products
or product preparation procedures, new Franchise System programs, new operations procedures
or programs, training, restaurant management, financial management, sales or sales promotion, or
similar topics and annual conferences. We will specify, from time to time, whether your attendance
at such meetings, seminars and conferences must be in person or via videoconference or other
means.

ltem 12: Territory

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate the Restaurant only at the Location approved
by the Franchisor in its sole discretion (the “Location™). If, at the time of the signing the Agreement,
we have not approved a Location for the Restaurant, you must propose a location for approval by the
Franchisor.

Once your Location has been selected and approved by Jet’s, Jet’s will designate your territory and
your advertising territory in the Franchise Agreement, which will be a one and one-half (1%2) mile
radius from the Location, unless the Location is within any of the five boroughs of the City of New
York, New York, Chicago, Illinois, or any other major city having a population of over one million
people, in which case the radius will be one-quarter (¥2) of a mile from the Location.

You may not relocate from the Location without our prior written approval. Any relocation will be
at your sole expense. The decision of the Franchisor as to whether to approve your request to relocate
from your Location is in our sole discretion. In determining whether to consent to a relocation of your
restaurant, we consider the same factors as we would in approving an initial restaurant location, as
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well as trying to keep the same territory and not violating other franchisees’ territories. Moreover,
except as may be set forth in and Area Development Agreement signed by us and you (as described
below), we have no obligation to approve any additional franchised outlets for you, and you have no
options, rights of first refusal or other rights to acquire any additional franchises.

You will have limited rights within your defined territory, which include the right to (i) operate in
your defined territory, (ii) advertise in your defined advertising territory, (iii) accept pick-up orders
from inside or outside your territory (except for special events), (iv) accept delivery orders from
inside your territory, and (v) accept delivery orders from outside your territory (subject to restrictions
imposed by Jet’s from time to time).

Your territory is not exclusive, because your territory does not give you any exclusivity with respect
to customers located in the territory or elsewhere, and because we retain rights to Non-Traditional
Restaurants as described below. Because your territory is not exclusive, we are required to include
the following statement: “You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from
other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive
brands that we control.” We and our affiliates retain the right to own, acquire, establish and/or operate,
and franchise or otherwise license others to establish and operate “Non-Traditional Restaurants”
inside your territory, which are defined as food trucks and other mobile units and in arenas, sports
stadiums, sports complexes, shopping malls, food courts, department stores, retail and convenience
stores, gas stations, hotels, casinos, amusement parks, arcades, theaters, bowling centers, festivals,
fairs, schools, colleges, national parks, state and local parks, public beaches, convention centers,
conference centers, factories, hospitals, penal institutions, airports, train stations, public transit
stations, cruise ship ports, turnpikes, military bases, government buildings, school buildings and
grounds, office complexes, high-rise apartment buildings, senior living facilities, Indian reservations,
and other premises where the primary activity conducted at the premises is other than the retail sale
of food prepared for immediate consumption. In addition, Franchisor reserves the right to supply
“Special Events” in your territory, which are defined as banquets, receptions, picnics, parties, fairs,
sporting events, or other events where the volume of the order may be beyond Franchisee’s normal
capacity. Jet’s has no obligation to pay you any consideration in the event that Jet’s establishes a
Non-Traditional Restaurant or handles a Special Event in your territory.

As long as you are not in default under your Franchise Agreement, we will not operate or grant a
franchise to any other person or entity to operate a Restaurant within your territory, except for Non-
Traditional Restaurants as described above.

Your rights within your territory are not subject to achieving or maintaining a certain sales volume,
market penetration or other performance-based factor, and once determined, Jet’s has no right to alter
the boundaries of your territory during the initial and first renewal term of the Franchise Agreement.

Jet’s may impose restrictions upon advertising activities, such as to coordinate advertising activities
with other franchisees in nearby territories. Jet’s may also impose restrictions upon accepting delivery
orders from outside your territory, such as to minimize interference with the territories of other
franchisees, or to ensure the quality of the pizza or other food being delivered, which Jet’s reserves
the right to determine and decide in its sole discretion. Other than special events, as discussed below,
there is no restriction on accepting pick-up orders from outside of your territory.

Except as described in this disclosure document, we have not established, and, as of the issuance date
of this disclosure document, do not intend to establish, other franchised or company-owned
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Restaurants that provide similar products or services under different proprietary marks, but we
reserve the right to do so in the future.

Under an Area Development Agreement, you would have the right and obligation to develop a certain
number of Jet’s franchise restaurants within a defined Area Development Territory according to a
pre-determined development schedule, as outlined in the terms of an Area Development Agreement. So
long as you satisfy your obligations under the Area Development Agreement and applicable
Franchise Agreement, Jet’s will not establish, operate, or license anyone else to own or operate, a
Jet’s franchise restaurant in the Area Development Territory throughout the term of the Area
Development Agreement. For each franchise acquired under an Area Development Agreement, you
must sign a separate Franchise Agreement and any related agreements or documents on Franchisor’s
then-current standard forms. You may not develop or operate Jet’s franchise restaurants outside the
defined territory. Jet’s may terminate the Area Development Agreement if you do not satisfy your
development obligations as required.

Jet’s reserves all rights not specifically granted to you, including but not limited to: (a) to open,
operate and license others to own and operate restaurants, facilities or outlets operating under one or
more of Jet’s trademarks, but using a design, format or system materially different from your
franchise system; (b) to distribute or sell goods bearing one or more of Jet’s trademarks at wholesale
or retail, such as frozen pizza, canned pizza sauce or other ingredients; and (c) to open, operate and
license others to own and operate restaurants, stores or other facilities operating under one or more
of Jet’s trademarks, in conjunction with one or more other trademarks, service marks or franchise
systems. Jet’s has no immediate plans to do any of these things, but reserves the right to do so in the
future.

Item 13: Trademarks

You may operate a restaurant under the name “Jet’s Pizza,” using the logo shown on the cover page,
and using the other marks listed below. These are our principal trademarks used to identify the
franchised business, although Jet’s regularly develops additional trademarks. All of the trademarks
shown below are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTQO”):

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DELI BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,047,526 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,527 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
BABY PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,528 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET'S BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,096,791 09/16/1997 REGISTERED

JETMAN DESIGN

PRINCIPAL 2,133,757 02/03/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 2,150,029 04/14/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S BREAD PRINCIPAL 2,343,006 04/18/2000 REGISTERED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
JET'S PIZZA (STYLIZED)
PRINCIPAL 2,712,642 05/06/2003 REGISTERED
TURBO CRUST PRINCIPAL 2,787,930 12/02/2003 REGISTERED
JET 10 PRINCIPAL 3,145,297 09/19/2006 REGISTERED
FLAVORIZE YOUR CRUST FOR FREE PRINCIPAL 3,754,367 03/02/2010 REGISTERED
LET'S GET JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,802,330 06/15/2010 REGISTERED
LIFE IS SHORT. EAT BETTER PIZZA. PRINCIPAL 3,825,678 07/27/2010 REGISTERED
TURBO STIX PRINCIPAL 3,884,914 12/07/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA PRINCIPAL 3,889,969 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,313 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,314 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 3,933,302 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,934,048 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS

JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN

[
’
i zn PRINCIPAL 4,035,889 10/04/2011 REGISTERED
) PIZZA

F

8 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 4,267,021 01/01/2013 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD SUPPLEMENTAL 4,626,561 10/21/2014 REGISTERED
RESPECT THE CRUNCH PRINCIPAL 4,812,701 09/15/2015 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH DUO PRINCIPAL 4,826,143 10/06/2015 TO BE CANCELLED
EUGENE SUPREME PRINCIPAL 5,012,413 08/02/2016 REGISTERED
4 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 5,012,749 08/02/2016 REGISTERED
4 CORNER PI1ZZA & DESIGN
1~ ~
|
PRINCIPAL 5,032,003 08/30/2016 REGISTERED
_ 1
ALL MEATY PRINCIPAL 5,129,170 01/24/2017 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 5,236,704 07/04/2017 REGISTERED
BETTER, BECAUSE IT HAS TO BE. PRINCIPAL 5,820,995 07/30/2019 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD PRINCIPAL 6,203,586 11/24/2020 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 6,585,641 12/14/2021 REGISTERED
RE-PIZZA PRINCIPAL 6,739,825 05/24/2022 REGISTERED

There is no currently effective material determination of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board, or the trademark administrator of any state or any court, there are no pending
infringement, opposition or cancellation proceedings, and there is no pending material federal or
state court litigation regarding Jet’s use or ownership rights in any of these trademarks. There are no
agreements in effect which would significantly limit Jet’s right to use or license the use of these
trademarks in any way material to your franchise. Jet’s has filed all required affidavits and there are
no other superior rights, prior rights, or infringing uses other than that which is set forth herein.

Jet City Pizza Co. of Seattle, Washington was in business prior to registration of the marks listed
above, and is still in business, and therefore has certain prior rights to continue operating under that
name. On December 20, 2005, Jet City Pizza and Jet’s entered into a Trademark Coexistence
Agreement (“Coexistence Agreement”). Pursuant to the Coexistence Agreement, Jet City Pizza has
certain restrictions on its use of its JET CITY PIZZA trademark. For example, it may not use its JET
CITY PIZZA trademark outside of a 100-mile radius of the Seattle metropolitan area unless such use
either includes or is in close proximity to its design mark depicted in U.S. Trademark Registration
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No. 2,182,137 or is used in conjunction with a new design. It may, however, use its JET CITY PIZZA
trademark within the 100-mile radius of the Seattle metropolitan area without the inclusion of a logo.
The Coexistence Agreement has no written prohibition on the location of Jet’s Pizza restaurants
within or outside of Seattle, Washington but Jet’s cannot control any decision by the Jet City Pizza
successors in interest to raise such an issue.

You must notify Jet’s promptly of any infringement claim against you by a third party related to your
use of Jet’s trademarks. You must also notify Jet’s promptly of any action by a third party that may
constitute infringement of any of Jet’s trademarks. Jet’s has the exclusive right to defend its marks
against infringement by others, and has sole discretion whether it wishes to defend you against
infringement claims by third parties provided you promptly notify Jet’s of the claim. The action to be
taken by Jet’s is subject to its exclusive discretion, and may include modification or discontinuance
of the use of any mark. In that case, you must immediately modify your use or stop using the mark.
If it is one of the principal marks used in connection with the franchise system, Jet’s shall provide
you with one or more replacement marks.

Under our business judgment, if we decide at any time that we will discontinue using, modify, replace,
or use additional trademarks, you must comply with our directions after receiving our notice to you.
Jet’s shall have no liability for any other loss, damage, cost or expense you may suffer, such as but
not limited to, litigation costs, attorney fees, any loss of revenue, increased promotion expenses, or
the cost of remodeling your store.

You may use our trademarks only as expressly authorized in your Franchise Agreement. If we
discover your unauthorized use of our trademarks, we may require you to immediately stop your
unauthorized use and destroy all offending items reflecting such unauthorized use.

Jet’s will protect your right to use our trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes, or other
commercial symbols we authorize, or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of
any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of Jet’s name, provided that your use has been consistent
with the Franchise Agreement, Operations Manual, and our current standards and you have promptly
notified us of, and comply with our directions in responding to, the proceeding.

Item 14: Patents, Copyrights, and Proprietary Information

No patents are material to the franchise. Jet’s has an unregistered copyright in its Operations Manual,
and has other proprietary information material to the franchise, such as recipes, food preparation
cards and advertising material, which you will receive under your Franchise Agreement. This
proprietary information is subject to confidentiality agreements contained in your Franchise
Agreement. Jet’s also has the following United States copyright registration:

Copyright 10/21/2016 VA 2-020-763

There is no current material determination of the USPTO, the United States Copyright Office
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(USCO) or any court regarding this copyright. There is no agreement that limits the use of the
copyright. Jet’s has no obligations to take any action to protect this copyright or to defend you against
claims arising from your use of the Operations Manual.

Item 15: Obligation to Participate in the Actual Operation of the Franchise Business

You are required, at all times, in good faith, honestly, and diligently, to perform your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement and use best efforts to promote and successfully operate your Jet’s
Pizza Franchise.

Jet’s requires that each store have at least one owner who personally supervises the franchised
business. This “owner-operator” will serve as a manager and must (1) have successfully completed
our training program, and (2) possess the skills necessary to properly fulfill and discharge the
demands and responsibilities required by the Franchise Agreement. The manager and each owner
(as defined below) must sign a confidentiality agreement to protect the proprietary information of
Jet’s, and an agreement not to compete with Jet’s. Copies of the current forms of Confidentiality
Agreement and Agreement Not to Compete are attached as Exhibits G and H. The manager does not
have to have an ownership interest in the franchise. If you are a corporation, limited liability company
or other entity in which the owners have limited liability, each owner must sign a personal guaranty
of your obligations under the Franchise Agreement. A copy of the current form of personal guaranty
is attached as Exhibit F. For the avoidance of doubt, every person or entity holding a direct or indirect
ownership interest in a franchise is considered an “owner.”

Item 16: Restrictions on What the Franchisee May Sell

You must offer all menu items that Jet’s designates as mandatory, and you may not offer or sell any
menu items that have not been approved by Jet’s. Certain items may be offered or test marketed only
in certain regions, and certain items may be designated as mandatory only in certain regions. We
may modify our menu periodically and you must comply with the changes. Jet’s has absolute
discretion whether to make any changes to its menu. As discussed in Item 12, any orders you receive
for special events must be coordinated with Jet’s, and Jet’s may impose a reasonable limit on your
delivery area. Otherwise, there is no restriction on your customers, whether for pick-up or delivery,
and whether the order is placed from inside or outside your territory. During the approved hours of
operation, you must offer delivery from your Restaurant to customers within your territory, following
the rules we periodically establish. To the extent allowed by applicable law, we may regulate the
minimum, maximum, and other prices for our menu and services your Jet’s Pizza Franchise offers.

Item 17: Renewal, Termination, Transfer, and Dispute Resolution

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision Section in Summary
Franchise or
Other Agreement
a.  Length of the franchise 3 10 years
term
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the franchise

Provision Section in Summary
Franchise or
Other Agreement
b. Renewal or extension of 3 After the initial term, one renewal term of 10

years, but only if all requirements and conditions
of renewal are satisfied. The execution of a new
Franchise Agreement after the initial term does
not entitle you to an any additional renewal
terms.

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

No default of the Franchise Agreement, you
notify franchisor of desire to renew within 6
months of end of initial term, resolve, settle or
release all claims against franchisor, sign new
Franchise Agreement (which may contain
materially different terms than your original
contract), pay renewal fee, not be among the
lowest 10% of franchise restaurants in gross
sales or Acquired Inventory, be on good terms
with franchisor, including having a good
working relationship for day-to-day operations
and not being in litigation or other adversarial
legal proceedings with franchisor, and renovate
restaurant to comply with restaurant
specifications in effect at time of renewal.

d. Termination by
franchisee

Not Applicable

e. Termination by Jet’s
without cause

3

You are only entitled to one renewal term;
thereafter, Jet’s may terminate the agreement
with or without cause.

f.  Termination by Jet’s
with cause

151

Jet’s may terminate if you default, subject to
notice and cure provisions.

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

14,151

You will have between 5 and 30 days to cure a
default, depending upon the nature of the
default; for certain types of default you may
have to pay Jet’s a fine or penalty; the current
schedule of fines is attached as Schedule 5 to the
Franchise Agreement. Curable defaults include
failure to conform to the franchise system;
failure to pay royalties or other amounts owed to
Jet’s; defaults under lease; failure to pay
suppliers; obtaining your SBA loan in excess of
$350,000.00 without prior approval by
franchisor; fixed monthly cost exceeding
$9,000.00 without prior approval by franchisor.

h. “Cause” defined —
defaults which cannot be
cured

15.1(a)

Includes material misrepresentations; imminent
danger to public health; bankruptcy; criminal
conduct; abandonment; failure to have location
approved and secured lease or purchase within
90 days of signing; failure to open within 9
months of signing; failure to conclude
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Provision Section in Summary
Franchise or
Other Agreement

mandatory training pre-opening; failure to obtain
required insurance; failure to operate restaurant
for 3 or more consecutive business days;
violation of health or safety laws or regulations;
failure to pay taxes; failure to pay advertising
contributions; failure to comply with reporting
requirements; unauthorized use of trademarks;
unauthorized disclosures; unauthorized business
operations; failure to pay franchisor; failure to
operate under the franchisor’s name; use of
unapproved goods or equipment; violation of
non-compete; unauthorized transfer.

Franchisee’s obligations 12, 15.2,15.3, Obligations include ceasing to use marks; for a

on termination/non- 15.6, 15.7 termination following your default, you must

renewal pay $43,200 as liquidated damages for lost
royalties

Assignment of contract 13.1 No restriction on Jet’s right to assign

by Jet’s

“Transfer” by franchisee 13.2 Includes 50% or more ownership change

— defined

Jet’s approval of transfer 13.2 Jet’s must approve all transfers but will not

by franchisee withhold consent without good cause

Conditions for Jet’s 13.2 Conditions include qualified transferee;

approval of transfer completion of training program; payment of all
amounts due; cure of all defaults; payment of
transfer fee; and signing of Agreement for
Consent to Transfer

Jet’s right of first refusal 13.3 Jet’s has right of first refusal to purchase

to acquire franchisee’s franchise or any assets sold outside of ordinary

business course of business

Jet’s option to purchase 13, 15.6, 15.7 Jet’s has option to purchase your assets after

franchisee’s business termination of franchise due to your default

Death or disability of 13.4 Franchise must be transferred to surviving

franchisee spouse, children or qualified third party within
six months of your death, disability or
incapacity; if franchise is not transferred within
six months, the franchise will automatically
terminate

Non-competition 12 No competition within five miles of any Jet’s

covenants during the Pizza restaurant; no competition in sale of

term of the franchise franchises of operation of franchise system
competitive to Jet’s; no solicitation of
employees of other Jet’s Pizza restaurants

Non-competition 12 No competition for three years within five miles

covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

of any Jet’s Pizza restaurant; no competition in
sale of franchises of operation of franchise
system competitive to Jet’s; no solicitation of
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

employees of other Jet’s Pizza restaurants

Modification of the
agreement

18.20

Certain provisions may be modified by court or
tribunal; Jet’s may modify to comply with
change in law or to comply with judgment or
order of court or tribunal

Integration/merger
clause

18.10

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are
binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises outside of this
disclosure document and Franchise Agreement
may not be enforceable. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing in any agreement is intended
to disclaim the express representations made in
the Franchise Disclosure Document, its exhibits
and amendments.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

16

All controversies, disputes, or claims between
Franchisee and Franchisor shall be submitted for
binding arbitration with the American
Avrbitration Association in Southfield, Michigan.

Choice of forum

18.3

Michigan law governs, except as provided in the
State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

Choice of law

18.3

Michigan law applies, except as provided in the
State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

This table lists certain important provisions of the Area Development Agreement. You should
read these provisions in the agreement attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement
Length of term 2.2,26,7 Typically 5 years

Renewal or extension of
the term

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Termination by
franchisee

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Termination by Jet’s
without Cause

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Termination by Jet’s

Jet’s may terminate your option to acquire

with Cause additional franchises under the Area
7 Development Agreement, and Jet’s may
terminate any existing Franchise Agreements
then in effect
CS;LSE dgi;:}fg i 6.3, 6.4 Defaults with applicable cure periods.
“Cause” defined — 6.1, 6.2, 6.5, 6.6, | Defaults without applicable cure periods.
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Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement
defaults which cannot 6.7
be cured
Franchisee’s obligations Covenant not to compete for a period of three
on termination/non- 5 years after the expiration or termination of the

renewal

Area Development Agreement.

Assignment of contract
by Jet’s

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

“Transfer by franchisee”

Unless waived by Jet’s, transfer to third party

_ defined 6.2 orohibited.
Jet’s approval of Jet’s must approve all assignments but will not
transfer by franchisee 8.4 unreasonably withhold consent to an assignment

to an affiliate

Conditions for Jet’s
approval of transfer

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Jet’s right of first refusal
to acquire franchisee’s
business

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Jet’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

No competition with Jet’s Pizza within the Area
Development Territory or within five miles of
any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or Franchisor; no
competition in sale of franchises of operation of
franchise system competitive to Jet’s; no
solicitation of employees or customers of other
Jet’s Pizza restaurants

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

No competition with Jet’s Pizza within the Area
Development Territory or within five miles of
any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or Franchisor; no
competition in sale of franchises of operation of
franchise system competitive to Jet’s; no
solicitation of employees or customers of other
Jet’s Pizza restaurants

Modification of the
agreement

54,8.12

Certain provisions may be modified by court or
tribunal, or only in writing signed by both
parties.

Integration/merger
clause

8.11

Agreements and understandings before the
signature of Area Development Agreement are
superseded by Area Development Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in any
agreement is intended to disclaim the express
representations made in the Franchise
Disclosure Document, its exhibits and
amendments.

Dispute resolution

8.3

All controversies, disputes, or claims between
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Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement
Franchisee and Franchisor shall be submitted for
binding arbitration with the American
Avrbitration Association in Southfield, Michigan.
v.  Choice of forum 8.2 Michigan law governs, except as provided in the
' State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P
w. Choice of law 8.2 Michigan law applies, except as provided in the
' State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

Item 18: Public Fiqures

Jet’s reserves the right to promote with public figures.

Item 19: Financial Performance Representations

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a
franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a
franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you
are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting James Galloway, 37501
Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310 (586) 268-5870), the Federal Trade Commission,
and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

Item 20: Outlets and Franchisee Information

Table 1: System-wide Outlet Summary
For Years 2022 to 2024

Note: The entries 2021, 2022, and 2023 are for the years ended December 31 of each of those years.

Outlets at Start |Qutlets at End of
Outlet Type Year of Year Year Net Change
Franchised
2022 354 360 +6
2023 360 369 +9
2024 369 394 +25
Company or
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Affiliate Owned 2022 40 47 +7
2023 47 53 +6
2024 53 56 +3
2022 394 407 +13
Total Outlets 2023 407 422 +15
2024 422 450 +28

Table 2: Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to
New Owners (other than Jet’s or its affiliates)

For Years 2022 to 2024
State Year Number of Transfers

o 2022 0
abama 2023 2
2024 0

i 2022 0
rizona 2023 0
2024 0

Colorad 2022 0
olorado 2023 0
2024 0

lorid 2022 2
orida 2023 2
2024 2

ceordi 2022 0
eorgla 2023 0
2024 3

o 2022 0
INoIS 2023 1
2024 0

- 2022 0
ndiana 2023 3
2024 1
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State Year Number of Transfers
Kentuck 2022 2
entucky 2023 0
2024 1
ichi 2022 9
Michigan 2023 3
2024 3
) 2022 1
Minnesota 2023 0
2024 0
) _ 2022 0
Missouri 5023 0
2024 0
2022 0
New York 2023 0
2024 0
_ 2022 0
North Carolina 2023 0
2024 0
2022 0
Ohio 2023 5
2024 0
) 2022 0
Pennsylvania 5023 0
2024 0
) 2022 0
South Carolina 2003 0
2024 0
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State Year Number of Transfers
2022 6
Tennessee 2023
2024 4
2022 1
Texas 2023 0
2024 0
o 2022 0
\Virginia 2023 0
2024 0
) ) 2022
\Wisconsin 2023 1
2024 0
2022 21
2024 14
Table 3: Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2022 to 2024
Ceased
Outlets Re- . Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- acquired Operations at End
Opened Renewals , - Other
of Year by Jet’s of Year
Reasons
Alabama 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arizona 2022| 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 1 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 2 0 0 0 0 6
Colorado 5007 3 > 0 0 0 0 5
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Ceased
Outlets Re- . Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- acquired Operations at End
Opened Renewals ; - Other
of Year by Jet’s of Year
Reasons
2023 5 1 0 0 1 0 5
2024 5 2 0 0 0 0 7
Florida 2022 | 27 0 0 0 1 0 28
2023| 28 2 0 0 1 0 29
2024 | 29 4 0 0 0 0 33
Georaia 2022 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
g 2023| 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
2024 10 1 1 0 0 0 10
linois 2022| 20 3 0 0 0 0 23
2023| 23 1 0 0 0 0 24
2024 24 4 0 0 +1 0 29
Indiana
2022 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2023 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
2024 | 12 3 0 0 0 0 15
Kentuck 2022 8 0 0 0 1 0 !
Y 20231 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 1 0 1 0 0 7
Michiaan 2022 | 142 0 0 0 3 0 139
9 2023| 139 0 0 0 2 0 137
2024 | 137 0 0 0 0 0 137
Minnesota 2022 10 L 0 0 0 0 1
2023 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2024 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2022 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Missouri 2023 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
North 2022 10 0 1 0 0 0 9
Carolina 2023 9 1 0 0 0 0 10
2024 | 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
Nevada 2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
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Ceased

Outlets Outlets Non- Re- Operations Outlets
State Year |at Start Terminated acquired P at End
Opened Renewals ; - Other
of Year by Jet’s of Year
Reasons
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 3 1 0 0 0 0 4
New York 5073 4 1 0 0 0 0 5
2024 5 0 1 0 0 0 4
) 2022 44 1 1 0 0 0 44
Ohio

2023 | 44 0 0 0 0 0 44
2024 | 44 3 0 0 0 0 47
Pennsylvania 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Yy 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
South 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Carolina 2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Tennessee 2022| 32 L 0 0 0 0 33
2023| 33 0 0 0 0 0 33
2024 | 33 1 0 0 0 0 34
T 2022 14 1 0 0 1 0 14
exas 2023 14 3 0 0 0 0 17
2024 | 17 2 0 0 0 0 19
Utah 2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Virgini 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Irginia 2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
\Washington 5004 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
\Wisconsin 2022 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
2023 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
2024 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
Totals 2022 | 355 12 2 0 5 0 360
2023 | 360 13 0 0 4 0 369
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Ceased
Outlets Re- . Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- acquired Operations at End
Opened Renewals ; - Other
of Year by Jet’s of Year
Reasons
2024 | 369 27 2 1 +1 0 394
Table 4: Status of Affiliate-Owned Outlets
For Years 2022 to 2024
Outlets
Outlets at Outlets | Reacquired | Outlets Outlets | Outlets at
State Year | Start of Sold to End
Opened from Closed .
Year . Franchisees| of Year
Franchisees
Colorad 2022 3 0 0 0 0 3
olorado 2023 3 1 1 0 0 5
2024 5 1 0 0 0 6
Florida 2022 4 1 0 0 1 4
2023 4 0 1 0 0 5
2024 5 0 0 0 0 5
linois 2022 2 1 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 1 2
2022 6 0 1 0 0 7
Kentucky 2023 7 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 7
Michiaan 2022 21 0 3 0 0 24
g 2023 24 0 2 0 0 26
2024 26 1 0 0 0 27
2022 0 1 0 0 0 1
New York 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1
. 2022 4 0 0 0 0 4
North Carolina 2023 4 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 0 0 0 0 4
South Carolina 2004 0 1 0 0 0 1
Texas
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2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 2
2024 2 1 0 0 0 3
Totals 2022 40 3 5 0 1 47
2023 47 2 4 0 0 53
2024 53 4 0 0 1 56

This table includes transfers by reason of a 50% or greater change in the ownership of a franchisee,
and includes multiple transfers of a single franchise

Table 5: Projected Openings as of December 31, 2025

AgreEr;aennCtzI;?gne d Proj_ected New _ Projected New Affiliate-
State but Outlet Not Franchlsed_OutIets in Owned_OutIets in Next
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Alabama 1 0 0
Arizona 2 2 0
California 0 0 0
Colorado 0 0 1
Florida 2 5 1
Georgia 0 5 0
Ilinois 1 3 0
Indiana 0 3 0
Kentucky 0 0 0
Michigan 3 0 0
Minnesota 0 0 0
Mississippi 1 0 0
Missouri 0 0 0
Montana 0 0 0
Nevada 1 2 0
New York 1 0 0
North Carolina 0 0 0
Ohio 2 8 0
Pennsylvania 0 0 0
South Carolina 0 0 0
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A rezrzaennctrs";? ned Projected New Projected New Affiliate-
State gbut Outlet N%t Franchised Outlets in| Owned Outlets in Next
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Tennessee 3 2 0
Texas 4 5 2
Utah 0 0 0
Virginia 1 2 0
Washington 1 0 0
Wisconsin 0 0 0
Total

Attached as Exhibit D is a list of all current franchisees and the address and telephone number of
each of their outlets. Exhibit D also reflects franchisees that have signed a Franchise Agreement,
but have not yet opened their stores. Attached as Exhibit E is the name and last known business or
home phone number of all of the franchisees who had a store terminated, canceled, not renewed,
transferred, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise
Agreement during the most recent fiscal year. There are no franchisees who have failed to
communicate with Jet’s within the last ten weeks. If you buy this franchise, your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak
openly about their experience with Jet’s. You may wish to speak with current and former
franchisees but be aware that not all of those franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

To the best knowledge of Jet’s, currently there is not a franchisee organization associated with the
franchise system being offered.

Item 21: Financial Statements

Jet’s audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024,
are attached as Exhibit B.

Item 22: Contracts

Copies of the following agreements and documents are attached as Exhibits:

Agreement Exhibit

Franchise Agreement, including the following schedules: A
1. Fees, Deposits and Spending Requirements
2. Franchise’s Location, Territory and Business Name
3. Marks
4. Standard Lease Rider
5. Schedule of Fines for Minor Defaults

Personal Guaranty F
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Related Party Confidentiality Agreement G
Related Party Agreement Not to Compete H
Business Purpose Affidavit I
Ownership Certificate J
Sample Forms of Transfer Agreements K-1
Royalty Addendum for Transfer — Franchise Agreement K-2
Renewal Addendum — Remodeling Requirements L
General Release Upon Renewal M
Area Development Agreement Q

Item 23: Receipts

The last two pages of this Disclosure Document (Exhibit R) are identical pages acknowledging
receipt of the entire document (including the Exhibits). Please sign and return to us one copy;
please keep the other copy along with this Disclosure Document. Jet’s America, Inc. (37501
Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310; (586) 268-5870) is the only entity authorized to
offer or sell Jet’s Pizza franchises in the United States of America.
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS
THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE
FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE
PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
related to a franchise:

(A) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(B) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in the Michigan
Franchise Investment Law. This section shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a
franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(C)  Aprovision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of a franchisee to comply
with any lawful provisions of a franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days,
to cure such failure.

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating a franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of a franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings. Personalized
materials which have no value to a franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to
compensation. This section applies only if:

1) The term of a franchise is less than five years; and

@) a franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade
name, logo-type, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise, or a franchisee does not receive at least six months advance notice of
a franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(E) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

(F)  Aprovision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside the State of
Michigan. This section shall not preclude a franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the
time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside the State of Michigan.

(G) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of the franchise, except for good cause. This section does not prevent a franchisor from exercising



a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet a franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

@) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of a franchisor or
subfranchisor.

3) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

4) The failure of a franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to
a franchisee or to cure any default in a franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed
transfer.

(H) A provision that requires a franchisee to resell to a franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This section does not prohibit a provision that grants to
the franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this section
prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the
market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of
the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in section (C).

()] A provision which permits a franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision
has been made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
MICHIGAN ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE MICHIGAN ATTORNEY
GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Department of Attorney General,
Consumer Protection Division (Attention: Franchise), P.O. Box 30213, Lansing, Michigan 48909,
telephone (517) 373-7117.



Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 3

MARKS

Franchisor's Marks currently include the following:

1. The following logo(s):

PIZZA

BETTER, BECAUSE
IT HAS TO BE.°

2. The following trademarks and/or service marks:

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DELI BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,047,526 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,527 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
BABY PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,528 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET'S BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,096,791 09/16/1997 REGISTERED

JETMAN DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 2,133,757 02/03/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 2,150,029 04/14/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S BREAD PRINCIPAL 2,343,006 04/18/2000 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA (STYLIZED)

PRINCIPAL 2,712,642 05/06/2003 REGISTERED
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
TURBO CRUST PRINCIPAL 2,787,930 12/02/2003 REGISTERED
JET 10 PRINCIPAL 3,145,297 09/19/2006 REGISTERED
FLAVORIZE YOUR CRUST FOR FREE PRINCIPAL 3,754,367 03/02/2010 REGISTERED
LET'S GET JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,802,330 06/15/2010 REGISTERED
LIFE IS SHORT. EAT BETTER PIZZA. PRINCIPAL 3,825,678 07/27/2010 REGISTERED
TURBO STIX PRINCIPAL 3,884,914 12/07/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA PRINCIPAL 3,889,969 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,313 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,314 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
_j_j_ PRINCIPAL 3,933,302 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
P T 2
JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,934,048 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 4,035,889 10/04/2011 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZzZA PRINCIPAL 4,267,021 01/01/2013 REGISTERED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DEEP DISH BREAD SUPPLEMENTAL 4,626,561 10/21/2014 REGISTERED
RESPECT THE CRUNCH PRINCIPAL 4,812,701 09/15/2015 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH DUO PRINCIPAL 4,826,143 10/06/2015 | TO BE CANCELLED
EUGENE SUPREME PRINCIPAL 5,012,413 08/02/2016 REGISTERED
4 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 5,012,749 08/02/2016 REGISTERED

4 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
— —

PRINCIPAL 5,032,003 08/30/2016 REGISTERED
i
ALL MEATY PRINCIPAL 5,129,170 01/24/2017 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 5,236,704 07/04/2017 REGISTERED
BETTER, BECAUSE IT HAS TO BE. PRINCIPAL 5,820,995 07/30/2019 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD PRINCIPAL 6,203,586 11/24/2020 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 6,585,641 12/14/2021 REGISTERED
RE-PIZZA PRINCIPAL 6,739,825 05/24/2022 REGISTERED
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 1
FEES, DEPOSITS AND SPENDING REQUIREMENTS

Initial Franchise Fee $30,000*
Royalty Fee (monthly) 12% of Acquired
Inventory or minimum

of $1,200

General Advertising Fee and Technology Fee (monthly) Combined, up to 10%
of Acquired Inventory

Initial Training Program (per person)** $1,000 (not including

training apparel;
estimated cost of
apparel is between
$100-$200); plus
expenses for lodging
and meals

Evaluation Fee for Approval of New Supplier** $1,000, plus out-of-
pocket expenses
incurred by Jet’s

Minimum Monthly Expenditure on Advertising (including any $3,800
contributions to Regional Advertising Fund)

Loyalty and Gift Card Programs Administrative Monthly | Currently: $30.00 plus

Fee*** $99.00 (currently part of
Minimum Monthly

Expenditure on

Advertising)

Regional Advertising Fee 25¢ per box or a weekly
contribution, as set forth

on Appendix A

Transfer Fee** Up to $6,000
Renewal Fee $4,000
Liquidated Damages under Section 15.3 Maximum

$43,200.00%****

* If the Franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person who serves in active duty or
who has served in the military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably
discharged, then the Initial Franchise Fee will be $15,000, reflecting a 50% discount
for military veterans.

Schedule 1 — Page 1
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

** The amount or formula shown above is the current fee or formula, but is subject to
change at the discretion of Franchisor. With respect to the Initial Training Program,
the cost for the first two people participating in the program is included in the Initial
Franchise Fee. If Franchisee elects to have more than two people trained, then
Franchisee must pay Franchisor the standard fee for each additional person.

***This fee is currently counted towards the Minimum Monthly Expenditure on
Advertising but Franchisor reserves the right to separate this fee from the minimum
advertising spending requirement and charge the fee in addition to any other fee or
spending requirement.

*#**[n case there are less than 36 months remaining in the term of the Franchise

Agreement, the number of months multiplied by $1,200.00 will equal the liquidated
damages.

Acknowledgement by parties that this Schedule is part of the Franchise Agreement:

Schedule 1 — Page 2
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

JET'S AMERICA, INC.

John Jetts, President Signature
Date Name of Person Signing
Company

Position of Person Signing

Date

Schedule 1 — Page 3
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

CONTRIBUTION TO REGIONAL ADVERTISING FUNDS

APPENDIX A

Denver DMA Jet's Pizza $426.92/week
Ft. Myers DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Tampa DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$250/week
Atlanta DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Chicago DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$200/week
Indianapolis DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Louisville DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Lexington DMA Jet’s Pizza $393/week
Michigan Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$300/week
St. Louis DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Charlotte DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Raleigh DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Austin DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Cincinnati DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$175/week
Cleveland DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Columbus DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Nashville DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Green Bay DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Milwaukee DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 2

Name and Location

Franchisor’s
Initials

Franchisee’s
Initials

Date

Franchisee’s Business Name:

Location (address):
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 3

MARKS

Franchisor's Marks currently include the following:

1. The following logo(s):

PIZZA

BETTER, BECAUSE
IT HAS TO BE.°

2. The following trademarks and/or service marks:

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DELI BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,047,526 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,527 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
BABY PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,528 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET'S BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,096,791 09/16/1997 REGISTERED

JETMAN DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 2,133,757 02/03/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 2,150,029 04/14/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S BREAD PRINCIPAL 2,343,006 04/18/2000 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA (STYLIZED)

PRINCIPAL 2,712,642 05/06/2003 REGISTERED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
TURBO CRUST PRINCIPAL 2,787,930 12/02/2003 REGISTERED
JET 10 PRINCIPAL 3,145,297 09/19/2006 REGISTERED
FLAVORIZE YOUR CRUST FOR FREE PRINCIPAL 3,754,367 03/02/2010 REGISTERED
LET'S GET JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,802,330 06/15/2010 REGISTERED
LIFE IS SHORT. EAT BETTER PIZZA. PRINCIPAL 3,825,678 07/27/2010 REGISTERED
TURBO STIX PRINCIPAL 3,884,914 12/07/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA PRINCIPAL 3,889,969 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,313 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,314 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
_j_j_ PRINCIPAL 3,933,302 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
P T 2
JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,934,048 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 4,035,889 10/04/2011 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZzZA PRINCIPAL 4,267,021 01/01/2013 REGISTERED

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DEEP DISH BREAD SUPPLEMENTAL 4,626,561 10/21/2014 REGISTERED
RESPECT THE CRUNCH PRINCIPAL 4,812,701 09/15/2015 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH DUO PRINCIPAL 4,826,143 10/06/2015 | TO BE CANCELLED
EUGENE SUPREME PRINCIPAL 5,012,413 08/02/2016 REGISTERED
4 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 5,012,749 08/02/2016 REGISTERED

4 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
— —

PRINCIPAL 5,032,003 08/30/2016 REGISTERED
i
ALL MEATY PRINCIPAL 5,129,170 01/24/2017 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 5,236,704 07/04/2017 REGISTERED
BETTER, BECAUSE IT HAS TO BE. PRINCIPAL 5,820,995 07/30/2019 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD PRINCIPAL 6,203,586 11/24/2020 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 6,585,641 12/14/2021 REGISTERED
RE-PIZZA PRINCIPAL 6,739,825 05/24/2022 REGISTERED

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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SCHEDULE 4

Jet's Pizza
STANDARD LEASE RIDER

THIS RIDER is attached to and part of a lease between the landlord ("Landlord") and
tenant ("Tenant"), and concerns the premises (the "Premises"), described below:

Landlord Name

Address

Telephone/FAX
Numbers

Contact Person

Tenant Name

Address

Telephone/FAX
Numbers

Contact Person

Premises

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.  Construction of Rider. This Rider is referred to as the "Rider." The lease form in
connection with which this Rider is being executed is referred to as the "Primary Lease Form."
The Rider and the Primary Lease Form, together, constitute the "Lease." To the extent of any
conflict, the provisions of this Rider shall supersede those of the Primary Lease Form.

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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2. Franchisor is Third Party Beneficiary. Tenant is a franchisee of JET'S AMERICA,
INC., a Michigan corporation ("Franchisor"). The Premises are to be the location of a Jet's Pizza
franchise restaurant. The purpose of this Rider is to grant Franchisor a certain amount of control
over the Premises under certain circumstances, and over Tenant's conduct of the franchise
business at the Premises. Accordingly, Franchisor is a third party beneficiary of this Lease.

3. Notice to Franchisor.

3.1 Landlord agrees to provide Franchisor with thirty days' prior written notice of
any of the following:

(a) The cancellation or termination of the Lease by either Landlord or
Tenant prior to the expiration date stated in the Lease;

(b)  Any assignment or proposed assignment of the Lease by either Landlord
or Tenant;

(c) Any sublease or proposed sublease of the Premises by Tenant;
(d) Any modification of the Lease; or

(e) The renewal of the existing Lease by Landlord and Tenant, or the
execution of a new lease.

3.2 Landlord agrees to provide contemporaneous written notice to Franchisor of
any notice of default given to Tenant and allow Franchisor to cure such default within 30 days of
receipt of such notice by Franchisor.

3.3 Landlord must provide written notice to Franchisor within fifteen days after
Landlord commences any legal action against Tenant, including but not limited to an action for
eviction.

4.  Tenant's Right to Assign the Lease. Tenant shall have the right to assign the Lease to
Franchisor or to any other franchisee of Franchisor, provided the assignee assumes all of
Tenant's obligations under the Lease.

5. Franchisor's Right to Assume [ease. Franchisor shall have the right to assume the
Lease within 30 days of receipt of a notice from Landlord of any of the following circumstances:

5.1 Tenant assigns the Lease to Franchisor under Section 4;
5.2 The expiration or termination of Tenant's franchise; or

5.3 The expiration, cancellation or termination of the Lease, or Landlord's eviction
of Tenant from the Premises for any reason.

5.4 The notice of Tenant’s default.

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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Franchisor's right to assume the Lease is assignable to any of its other franchisees,
provided the assignee assumes all of Tenant's obligations under the Lease.

6.  Signs. Tenant shall have the right to install at the Premises professionally prepared
window banners, promotional banners and posters, window decals, and announcements, on the
inside of the plate glass windows, regardless of any sign criteria previously or subsequently
prescribed by Landlord, within restrictions required by local municipalities.

7. Franchisor's Marks. Landlord acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to Franchisor's trademarks and service marks (the "Marks"), including but not limited to
the name "Jet's Pizza." Landlord disclaims any right it may have or may otherwise acquire under
the Lease or by law, to any signs, banners or other assets of Tenant or Franchisor bearing any of
Franchisor's Marks.

8.  Restrictive Covenant. If the Premises are located in a shopping center or mall,
Landlord shall not allow any tenant located in any other portion of the shopping center or mall to
engage in a business in which ten (10%) percent or more of the gross revenue is derived from the
sale of pizza.

9.  Compliance with Laws. Franchisor shall have no responsibility for the compliance
with any applicable federal, state or local law concerning the Premises, including but not limited
to the Americans with Disabilities Act, until such time as Franchisor receives an assignment of
or assumes the Lease and takes possession of the Premises.

10. Binding Effect. This Rider shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

LANDLORD: TENANT:

Signature Signature

Name of Person Signing Name of Person Signing
Position Position

Date Date

Jet’s Pizza (2025)
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SCHEDULE 5§
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE FEES FOR VARIOUS DEFAULTS

In addition to any other rights and remedies Franchisor may have under the Franchise Agreement:

1. Purchase or use of equipment, goods or supplies from unapproved suppliers, or that do not
meet prescribed specifications:

1% Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™ or subsequent offense:
$5,000

2. Use of unauthorized advertising materials: All print advertising and marketing materials
(EDDMs, flyers, Bob Toppers, Mailshark, local print, etc.) must be submitted and approved
by Jet’s Pizza Marketing Dept. to ensure compliance with Jet’s Pizza Brand Standards.

1% Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™ or subsequent offense:
$5,000

3. Failure to comply with Operations Manual with regard to preparation of menu items:

1*" Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1 offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2" offense: $2,500
Failure to cure 2" offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3™ or subsequent
offense: $5,000

4.  Failure to comply with Operations Manual with regard to store appearance:

1*' Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1 offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™ offense: $2,500
Failure to cure 2" offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3™ or subsequent
offense: $5,000

5.  Mistreatment, abuse of customers (both written and/or verbal), or failure to address customer
complaints to the reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor:

1% Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1* offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™ offense: $2,500
Failure to cure 2" offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3™ or subsequent
offense: $5,000

6.  Failure to obtain executed confidentiality agreements or agreements not to compete from
employees or other persons required under Franchise Agreement:

1% Offense: warning

Schedule 5 — Page 1
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Failure to cure 1 offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2" offense: $2,500
Failure to cure 2" offense within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3™ or subsequent
offense: $5,000

Sale or transfer of the Franchise, the Restaurant, or the franchised business, without the prior
written consent of Franchisor: $7,500

Late payment of royalties:

1°' Offense: $250
Failure to cure within prescribed cure period, and 2™ or subsequent offense: $500

Unauthorized use of the Marks:

Ist Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or subsequent offense:
$5,000

Failure to submit required reports when due:

Ist Offense: $250
Failure to cure within prescribed cure period, and 2™ or subsequent offense: $500

Failure to comply with the Policy Against the Disparagement and Unauthorized Use or
Display of Jet’s Brand and Marks, as set forth in the Operations Manual’s Supplemental
Policies including but not limited to: social media posts (such as Facebook, Instagram,
TikTok, etc.) by employees, photos, texts, and/or interviews, on any platform that is publicly
accessible:

Each Offense: up to $20,000 (to be determined by Franchisor)

Failure to update in-store signage. All signage must be updated to current brand standards.
No other signage should be displayed at store level that is visible to customer.

1°' Offense: Warning — to be given in writing (letter or email); thirty day period to correct.
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or subsequent offense:
$5,000

Unauthorized social post(s) on any platform (including Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, etc.)
are not permitted.

1% Offense: Warning — to be given in writing (letter or email); thirty day period to correct.

Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2™ or subsequent offense:
$5,000

Schedule 5 — Page 2
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14.

15.

16.

Unauthorized TV and Radio advertising is prohibited. All creative must be submitted and
approved by Jet’s Pizza Marketing Dept. to ensure compliance with Jet’s Pizza Brand
Standards.

1% Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or subsequent offense:
$5,000

Failure to comply with renewal requirements: in the event Franchisor decides in its discretion
to allow for a conditional renewal of a Franchise Agreement, Franchisee shall be subject to
pay the following fees for late compliance:

1% Offense: $5,000
Failure to cure within cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or subsequent offense:
$10,000

Failure to adhere to mandatory operating hours as required under the Operations Manual:
Without approval by Franchisor: $500 per day

If Franchisee provides at least 24 hours’ notice to Franchisor, submits satisfactory evidence
of a bona fide reason, and obtains Franchisor’s approval: $250 per day

Information Technology Fees

17.

18.

19.

20.

PCI Compliance Fee

1¥ Offense: $1,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may be
refunded.

Credit Card Breach Negligence Fine
1st Offense: $25,000

Only for use in cases of breach where Jet’s America finds the franchisee to be negligent
of maintaining PCI compliance.

Unapproved POS

1st Offense: $3,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may
be refunded.

Unapproved or Unutilized (missing) Online Ordering platform

1¥' Offense: $3,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may
Schedule 5 — Page 3
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be refunded.
21. Contracted Use of Unapproved Aggregator

1% Offense: $3,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may be
refunded.

Schedule 5 — Page 4
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Tel: 614-488-3126 300 Spruce Street, Suite 100
Fax: 614-488-0095 Columbus, OH 43215
www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Jet’s America, Inc.
Sterling Heights, Michigan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jet’s America, Inc. (the Company),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

BDO USA, F.C.

April 29, 2025
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 12,603,814 S 8,442,777 S 12,939,420
Short-term investments - 3,562,882 -
Accounts receivable 3,628,997 3,296,468 3,210,068
Inventory 46,501 9,392 15,201
Notes receivable 408,821 362,947 348,713
Related party receivable 250,000 - -
Prepaid expenses 747,249 299,770 64,953
Total Current Assets 17,685,382 15,974,236 16,578,355
Property and Equipment, Net 276,805 274,000 251,656
Operating Lease Asset, Net 238,551 423,860 610,530
Intangible Assets 453,423 451,014 445,116
Notes Receivable, net of current 1,174,018 1,464,004 1,826,949
Total Assets 19,828,179 S 18,587,114 S 19,712,606
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,903,809 S 1,754,486 § 2,798,675
Accrued and other current liabilities:
Accrued compensation 76,276 97,923 82,936
Distributions payable 150,000 108,600 108,600
Deferred franchise fees 364,849 503,176 405,074
Gift cards redeemable 681,967 621,815 469,345
Operating lease liability 190,592 188,621 186,873
Other accrued liabilities 105,422 247,988 92,808
Total Current Liabilities 4,472,915 3,522,609 4,144,311
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred franchise fees, net of current 2,695,017 2,305,259 1,816,514
Operating lease liability, net of current 47,959 224,103 412,521
Total Liabilities 7,215,891 6,051,971 6,373,346
Stockholders’ Equity 12,612,288 12,535,143 13,339,260
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 19,828,179 § 18,587,114 § 19,712,606

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Net Revenue
Royalty revenue $ 13,172,520 $ 11,928,077 S§ 12,498,259
Advertising revenue 12,504,007 10,950,515 10,904,073
Vendor rebates 4,670,643 4,373,483 4,538,269
Franchise revenues 374,069 385,653 404,055
Other revenues 71,265 193,560 121,573
Total Net Revenue 30,792,504 27,831,288 28,466,229
Cost of Revenue 12,926 119,661 74,490
Gross Profit 30,779,578 27,711,627 28,391,739
Operating Expenses 25,909,395 23,281,659 23,308,063
Operating Income 4,870,183 4,429,968 5,083,676
Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income 347,633 161,376 75,366
Income tax expense (128,612) (335,487) (228,580)
Other income 270,697 227,509 77,876
Total Non-Operating Income (Expense) 489,718 53,398 (75,338)
Net Income $ 5,359,901 § 4,483,366 S 5,008,338

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Jet’s America, Inc.

Additional Retained

Common Stock Paid-in Capital Earnings Total
Balance, December 31, 2021 S 21,332 S 14,668 S 12,340,576 S 12,376,576
Net income - - 5,008,338 5,008,338
Distributions (4,045,654) (4,045,654)
Balance, December 31, 2022 21,332 14,668 13,303,260 13,339,260
Net income - - 4,483,366 4,483,366
Distributions (5,287,483) (5,287,483)
Balance, December 31, 2023 21,332 14,668 12,499,143 12,535,143
Net Income - - 5,359,901 5,359,901
Distributions (5,282,756) (5,282,756)
Balance, December 31, 2024 S 21,332 S 14,668 S 12,576,288 S 12,612,288

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income S 5,359,901 S 4,483,366 5,008,338
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 62,953 56,290 62,972
Loss on provision of note receivable - - 31,524
Non-cash lease expense 185,309 186,670 188,053
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment - - (6,230)
Interest on short-term investments - (62,882) -
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Accounts receivable (332,529) (86,400) 297,944
Inventory (37,109) 5,809 (10,655)
Related party receivable (250,000) - -
Prepaid expenses (447,479) (234,817) (11,536)
Accounts payable 1,149,323 (1,044,189) 818,957
Deferred franchise fees 251,431 586,847 119,546
Accrued and other liabilities (164,213) 170,167 (54,838)
Gift card liabilities 60,152 152,470 (91,525)
Operating lease liability (174,173) (186,670) (199,189)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,663,566 4,026,661 6,153,361
Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (65,758) (78,634) (99,392)
Proceeds from sale of property and
equipment - 18,417
Issuance of notes receivable (145,000) - (2,384,143)
Payments on notes receivable 389,112 348,711 214,603
Maturity of short-term investments 3,562,882 - -
Purchase of short-term investments - (3,500,000) -
Cash paid for intangible assets (2,409) (5,898) (9,379)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing
Activities 3,738,827 (3,235,821) (2,259,894)
Financing Activities
Distributions to stockholders (5,241,356) (5,287,483) 4,045,654)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (5,241,356) (5,287,483) 4,045,654)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 4,161,037 (4,496,643) (152,187)
Cash, beginning of year 8,442,777 12,939,420 13,091,607
Cash, end of year S 12,603,814 S 8,442,777 S 12,939,420
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash
Information
Cash paid for income taxes S 291,539 S 119,987 S 228,580
Supplemental Non-Cash Transactions
Distributions payable S 150,000 S 108,600 S 108,600

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Jet’s America, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business

Jet’s America, Inc. is engaged in the franchising of Jet’s Pizza restaurants in the United States. The
Company was incorporated on June 8, 1990 in Michigan.

Jet’s America, Inc. executes franchise agreements that establish the terms of its arrangements with
franchisees. The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial franchise fee of
$25,000 to $30,000 excluding any discounts or promotions that may be offered. In addition to the
initial investment fee, the franchisee pays Jet’s America, Inc. a monthly royalty fee based on a
percent of acquired inventory as defined in the franchise agreements, depending on the year of
initial operation. Under the franchise agreements, Jet’s America, Inc. is obligated to provide certain
training and opening assistance to the franchisees.

The following chart represents the stores open:

December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Franchised stores 394 369 360
Company or Affiliate owned stores 56 53 47
Total Stores 450 422 407

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Jet’s America, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Company), which include Jet’s Pizza National Advertising Fund (JPNAF) and Jet’s
America Productions, Inc. (the Rebate Fund). Collectively, JPNAF and the Rebate Fund are referred
to as “the Ad Funds.” All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Company has elected to adopt certain
accounting alternatives for private companies, as developed by the Private Companies Council,
including leasing entities under common control.

Cash

The company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months of less
to be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments

The Company classifies its certificates of deposit as cash and cash equivalents or short-term
investments and reassesses the appropriateness of the classification of its investments at the end
of each reporting period. Certificates of deposit with an original maturity greater than three months
are reported as short-term investments on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company classified
its short-term investments at the time of purchase as “held-to-maturity” and re-evaluates its
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

classification each reporting period based in its intent and ability to hold until maturity. Short-term
investments are carried at amortized cost and approximate fair value.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had $3,500,000 in certificates of deposit, plus $62,882 of
accrued interest, all of which was classified as short-term investments on its consolidated balance
sheets. During 2024, all of the Company’s short-term investments matured. The certificates of
deposit held as of December 31, 2023, earned interest at rates ranging from 4.10% to 4.88% per
annum and matured during 2024. The Company did not have any certificates of deposit as of
December 31, 2024 or December 31, 2022.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the invoice amounts and are primarily comprised of receivables
from franchisees and vendor rebates. The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses that is
calculated under the current expected credit loss (CECL) model. The CECL model applies to financial
assets measured at amortized cost and requires the Company to reflect expected credit losses over
the remaining contractual term of the asset. The Company uses an aging method to estimate
allowances for credit losses under the CECL model as the Company has determined that the aging
method adequately reflects expected credit losses, as corroborated by historical losses.
Management considers all accounts receivable collectible; therefore, an allowance for credit losses
has not been recorded at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Contract Balances

Following is an analysis of the activity in contract balances during the year. Contract assets arise
when the company transfers goods or services to a customer in advance of receiving consideration
from the customer. Contract liabilities represent the company's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer when consideration has already been received from the customer. Deferred
revenue is recorded as a component of accrued expenses and other liabilities on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2024 2023 2022 2021
Accounts receivable, net $ 3,628,997 S 3,296,468 S 3,210,068 S 3,508,012
Gift cards redeemable 681,967 621,815 469,345 560,870
Deferred franchise fees 3,059,866 2,808,435 2,221,588 2,102,042

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Both straight-line and accelerated methods are used
for computing depreciation and amortization. Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Management reviews the carrying value of property and equipment, intangibles, and other long-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from the use of these assets. If the sum of the expected future net cash
flows is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss would be recognized.
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An impairment loss would be measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets
exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company’s estimate of future cash flows is based upon,
among other things, certain assumptions about expected future operating performance, growth
rates and other factors. The actual cash flows realized from these assets may vary significantly from
the Company’s estimates due to increased competition, fluctuation in customer visits, fluctuations
in cost of sales, increased wages, and reductions in average selling prices. Assumptions underlying
future cash flow estimates are therefore subject to significant risks and uncertainties. For the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, management has determined no impairment of these
assets exists.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of capitalized trademark costs that are not subject to amortization and are
tested for impairment at least annually. No impairments were recognized in the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are reported at original issue amount plus accrued interest, less principal repaid.
Interest is recognized according to terms of the specific notes. The company maintains an allowance
for credit losses that is calculated under the current expected credit loss (CECL) model. The CECL
model applies to financial assets measured at amortized costs and requires the company to reflect
expected credit losses over the remaining contractual term of the asset. Collections are
continuously monitored and an allowance for credit losses under the CECL model is maintained
based on historical experience adjusted for current conditions and reasonable forecasts taking into
account specific economic factors. The Company evaluates credit risk based on a variety of credit
quality factors including prior payment experience, borrower financial information, credit ratings,
probabilities of default, industry trends and other internal metrics. All amounts deemed to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses in the period that determination is
made.

At December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, notes receivable represents uncollateralized loans at the
terms disclosed in Note 5. The notes receivable are classified as current or long term on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets depending on the maturity date. The Company considers
the notes receivable collectible; therefore, an allowance for loan losses has not been recorded at
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Revenue Recognition

Royalty Revenue

Franchise royalties, which are based on a percentage of acquired inventory, are recognized when
earned in accordance with the franchise agreement at the time they are incurred by the franchisees.

Royalty revenues are primarily related to the use of the license agreements and are recognized as
income in the same period in which the inventory purchases by the franchisees occur.
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Advertising Revenue
The Company has the following types of Advertising Revenue which are contributed to the Ad Funds:

e Box Revenue - Box fees are charged by the Company to franchisees using a volume-based
formula based on number of pizza boxes sold by the franchisee. Box revenues are recognized
when earned in the same period in which the sales by the franchisees occur in accordance
with the franchise agreement.

e Media Fees - The Company charges a fixed media fee to franchisees in certain regions.
Revenue recognized as a result of media fees are recognized as revenue at a fixed rate in
accordance with the franchise agreement.

e Volume Based - Additional franchisee contributions are not currently required to be
contributed, but franchisees may be required to contribute a percentage of acquired inventory
under the franchise agreement at the discretion of Jet’s America, Inc. There were no
volume-based advertising fees charged or collected during the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022.

Vendor Rebates

Jet’s America, Inc. earns vendor rebates based on the volume of purchases by franchised locations.
These funds are contributed to the Ad Funds to support advertising costs and other administrative
costs that support the franchisee system as further discussed below in Note 2. Vendor rebate
revenues are recognized by the Company in the period in which the rebates are earned.

Franchise Revenue

The Company generates revenues from franchise agreements. In consideration for the payment of
an initial fixed franchise fee, a volume-based royalty fee, a usage-based advertising fee and other
amounts specified in the franchise agreement, the Company grants new franchisees the use of the
Jet’s trademarks, recipes, systems, trainings, and operation assistance.

The Company satisfies the performance obligation related to the franchise fee collected over the
term of the related agreement, which is typically ten years. The initial franchise fee, as determined
by the signed franchise agreement, is nonrefundable and due at the time the agreement is entered
into. Revenue related to these franchise agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
respective term, which typically begins the date of the opening of the new franchise store.

Gift Card Liability

The Company acts as a clearinghouse for its franchisees’ gift card transactions. On a monthly basis,
franchisees are billed or paid for the amount of the gift card sales over or under gift card redemptions
at the respective franchisees’ store for the period. The gift card liability represents the amounts
owed to franchisees for unredeemed gift cards. The Company recorded a liability for unredeemed
gift cards, net of breakage, totaling $681,967, $621,815, and $469,345 at December 31, 2024, 2023,
and 2022, respectively.

In some cases, gift cards are not redeemed, or are not redeemed in full, and the unredeemed portion
is referred to as breakage. If the amount of gift card breakage and the estimated time period of
actual gift card redemption can be reasonably and objectively determined, then the Company will
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recognize gift card breakage is recorded based on historical customer usage patterns, in accordance
with escheatment laws. Management assesses historical data to identify a reasonable and objective
time period of redemption. Gift card breakage recorded was approximately $44,570, $48,279, and
$45,000 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively, and is included
in other revenues on the consolidated statements of income.

Leases

The Company accounts for leases in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. The standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU)
model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the consolidated balance
sheets for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as either finance or
operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the consolidated
statements of income.

The Company defines the lease term as the noncancellable term of the lease plus any renewal
options that are reasonably certain of exercise based on an assessment of economic factors. The
noncancellable term commences on the date the lessor makes the underlying asset available to the
lessee, irrespective of when lease payments begin.

The Company recognizes a ROU asset and lease liability at lease commencement, which are
measured by discounting lease payments using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

A lease ROU asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Interest on each lease
liability is determined as the amount that results in a constant periodic discount rate on the
remaining balance of the liability. Lease ROU assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with
the long-lived asset impairment policy.

The Company reassesses lease classification and remeasures ROU assets and lease liabilities when a
lease is modified, and that modification is not accounted for as a separate contract or upon certain
other events that require reassessment in accordance with ASC 842. Maintenance and property tax
expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis as variable lease costs.

JPNAF and Rebate Fund

The Rebate Fund is currently funded solely by supplier rebates. JPNAF is currently funded by supplier
rebates via the Rebate Fund and by franchisee contributions (box fees) using a volume-based
formula and media fees collected from franchisees. Additional franchisee contributions may be
required to contribute a percentage of acquired inventory under the franchise agreement at the
discretion of Jet’s America, Inc. The company required a 1% contribution for the year ended
December 31, 2024. No additional contributions were required for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022.

The Company may use the Ad Funds for advertising and promotional expenses, including production,
administrative costs, social media, advertising agency fees, and IT programs and enhancements
facilitating ordering, sales and promotions. The Company may also use the Ad Funds for media costs
only if reasonably intended to benefit Jet’s Pizza restaurants and the Franchise System generally,
such as a national radio or television advertising program.
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The Company has control of the Ad Funds and their activities. The expenditures are primarily
amounts paid to third parties but may also include personnel expenses and allocated costs.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expense is charged to income during the year in which it is incurred. Jet’s America, Inc.
directly incurred advertising expenses of $814,099, $816,594, and $918,309 for the years ending
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

In addition to the advertising expenses incurred directly by Jet’s America, Inc, advertising and media
expenses are also incurred by the Ad Funds. The Ad Funds incurred advertising expenses of
$15,481,635, $14,204,968, and $15,257,109 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022, respectively, and is included in operating expenses on the consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

Pursuant to provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the Company has elected to be taxed as an
S corporation. Generally, the income of an S-corporation is not subject to federal income tax at the
corporate level, but rather the stockholders are required to include a pro rata share of the
corporation’s taxable income or loss in their personal income tax returns, irrespective of whether
dividends have been paid. Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes has been made in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with GAAP, the Company follows ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, on accounting for
uncertain tax positions. The guidance clarifies the accounting for the recognition and measurement
of the benefits of individual tax positions in the consolidated financial statements. Tax positions
must meet a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not in order for the benefit of those tax
positions to be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company has
determined that it does not have any significant unrecognized tax benefits or obligations as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. It is the Company’s policy to include any
penalties and interest related to income taxes in general and administrative expenses, however,
the Company has no penalties or interest related to income taxes during the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

2021 PA 135 of the Michigan Income Tax Act was signed into law in 2022, establishing an elective
pass-through entity tax regime in Michigan that is intended to address the state and local tax
deduction cap. Effective January 1, 2022, the Company made an election to be taxed at the entity
level for state taxes. The pass-through entity tax will be imposed on the electing entity’s qualifying
taxable income. As a result, the Company recorded state income tax expense of $128,612, $335,487,
and $228,580 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively, which is
included in the consolidated statements of income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023-01, Leases (Topic 842):
Common Control Arrangement, which addresses the accounting by private companies for common
control leases and leasehold improvements associated with such leases. Specifically, the new
guidance includes the following provisions: (a) nonpublic entities can elect a practical expedient to
use the written terms and conditions of their arrangements between entities under common control
to determine whether a lease exists and, if so, to classify and account for that lease, rather than
using legally enforceable terms and conditions as currently required and (b) all entities (public or
nonpublic) will be required to amortize leasehold improvements associated with leases between
entities under common control generally over the useful life of the leasehold improvements to the
common control group, rather than over the shorter of the useful life of those leasehold improvements
and the remaining lease term as currently required. The Company adopted the standard effective
January 1, 2024. There was no material impact to the consolidated statements of income,
statements of changes in stockholders’ equity, and no cumulative adjustment was recognized.

Subsequent Events

The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and
including April 29, 2025, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to
be issued.

3. Revenue Recognition

Disaggregation of Revenue

Years ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Revenues
Royalty revenue (point in time) $ 13,172,520 $ 11,928,077 $ 12,498,259
Advertising revenue (point in time) 12,504,007 10,950,515 10,904,073
Vendor rebates (point in time) 4,670,643 4,373,483 4,538,269
Franchise revenues (over-time) 374,069 385,653 404,055
Other revenues (point in time) 71,265 193,560 121,573
Total Revenues $ 30,792,504 S 27,831,288 S 28,466,229

Deferred Franchise Fees

The Company’s deferred franchise fees consist of fees from franchisees upon execution of their
franchise agreements. The amounts received are recorded as deferred revenue until the Company
satisfies requirements under the franchise agreement or upon cancellation of the agreement.
Revenue from franchise agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
agreement as the underlying performance obligation is satisfied.
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A summary of significant changes to the contract liability balance is shown below:

Balance, December 31, 2021 S 2,210,643
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 415,000
Current year revenue recognition (404,055)
Balance, December 31, 2022 2,221,588
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 972,500
Current year revenue recognition (385,653)
Balance, December 31, 2023 2,808,435
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 650,600
Refunded fees (25,000)
Current year revenue recognition (374,069)
Balance, December 31, 2024 S 3,059,866

The following table illustrates the estimated revenue to be recognized in the future related to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of December 31, 2024:

Year ending December 31,

2025 S 364,849
2026 415,323
2027 374,243
2028 342,354
2029 323,662
Thereafter 1,239,435
Total S 3,059,866

4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

Depreciable

December 31, 2024 2023 2022  Life (Years)
Machinery and equipment $ 208,138 $ 208,138 S 181,113 5-15
Transportation equipment 116,332 116,332 116,332 5-10
Furniture and fixtures 336,559 306,805 306,805 5-10
Computer equipment and software 689,695 689,695 717,528 3-5
Leasehold improvements 561,486 525,482 485,791 @
Total Cost 1,912,210 1,846,452 1,807,569
Accumulated depreciation 1,635,405 1,572,452 1,555,913
Net Property and Equipment $ 276,805 S 274,000 S 251,656

@ Depreciable life of leasehold improvements is determined to be the estimated useful lives of
the improvements or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter.
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Depreciation expense was $62,953, $56,290, and $62,972 during the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022, respectively.

5. Notes Receivable

The Company’s note receivables consisted of the following:

December 31, 2024 2023 2022

Note with a franchisee for $144,200. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $3,304, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2026. $ 48,823 S 85,334 S 119,726

Note with a stockholder for $119,971. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
6.00% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $2,818, including
interest, beginning January 1, 2023. The
note matures on December 1, 2026. 60,115 89,360 119,971

Note with a stockholder for $119,971. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
6.00% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $2,818, including
interest, beginning January 1, 2023. The
note matures on December 1, 2026. 62,911 91,981 119,971

Note with a stockholder for $1,000,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 84
monthly installments of $14,012, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2029. 646,084 780,138 907,997

Note with a stockholder for $1,000,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 84
monthly installments of $14,012, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2029. 646,084 780,138 907,997

Note with a stockholder for $145,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
7.00% per annum. The note is due in 58
monthly installments of $2,871, including
interest, beginning March 15, 2024. The

note matures on December 15, 2028. 118,822
Total 1,582,839 1,826,951 2,175,662
Less current portion 408,821 362,947 348,713
Long-Term Portion $ 1,174,018 S 1,464,004 S 1,826,949
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6. Related Party Transactions
Interest

Interest income on the various related party notes listed above totaled $89,348, $98,319, and
$75,366 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Related Party Advances

The Company advanced the President of the Company $250,000 during 2024. As of December 31, 2024,
the company had a related party receivable totaling $250,000, which is included in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Royalties and Franchise Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company recognized royalty and
franchise fee income from affiliates related through common ownership totaling $862,662, $757,491,
and $752,241, respectively. The Company’s accounts receivable balances related to royalties and
franchise fees from these affiliates totaled $105,923, $62,840, and $75,938 as of December 31,
2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company received advertising fund
contributions income from affiliates related through common ownership totaling $2,029,952,
$1,719,449, and $1,439,612, respectively. The Company’s accounts receivable balances related to
advertising fund contributions from these affiliates totaled $158,901, $124,476, and $135,944 as of
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company received income for providing
accounting services for affiliates related through common ownership totaling $225,450, $209,400,
and $193,350, respectively.

Lease Commitment

The Company conducts its operations from premises leased from an entity related through common
ownership. The lease agreement requires the Company to pay $16,000 per month, plus taxes,
insurance, and maintenance on the property. Annual cash rent expense was $192,000 for each of
the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The lease agreement expires in April 2026.

The Company has elected to apply the private company accounting alternative for common control
leasing arrangements, as developed by the Private Company Council. Under the accounting
alternative, the Company is not required to evaluate whether the leasing entity is a variable interest
entity subject to consolidation by the Company.

See Note 8 for future minimum annual commitments.
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7. Retirement Plans

The Company maintains a SIMPLE IRA plan for its employees. The plan provides for the Company to
make a discretionary matching contribution of 3% of participating employee wages, limited to the
amount of the employee contribution. Contributions to the plan totaled $101,509, $95,208, and
$87,274 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

8. Operating Lease

The Company is obligated under an operating lease for the corporate headquarters (see Note 6),
which expires in 2026. The lease requires the Company to pay taxes, insurance, utilities, and
maintenance costs. The Company has elected the practical expedient not to separate lease and
non-lease components.

The Company recognized rent expense, which is included in operating expenses on the consolidated
statements of income, associated with the lease as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Operating lease cost:

Fixed rent expense S 192,000 S 192,000 § 192,000
Short-term lease cost 16,432 17,448 17,484
Total Lease Cost $ 208,432 S 209,448 S 209,484

The Company had the following cash and non-cash activities associated with the lease:

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases S 192,000 $ 192,000 S 192,000

The following is a schedule of future minimum non-cancellable rental payments required under the
operating lease for each of the two years subsequent to December 31, 2024:

Year ending Total
2025 S 192,000
2026 48,000
Total Rent Payments 240,000
Less effects of discounting (1,449)
Lease Liabilities Recognized S 238,551

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the weighted-average remaining lease term for the
operating lease is 1.27, 2.27, 3.27 years, respectively.
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The Company elected the practical expedient to utilize the risk-free rate as the discount rate. The
weighted average discount rate associated with the operating lease as of December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022 is 1.03%.

9. Capital Stock

Jet’s America, Inc. common stock consists of 10,000 authorized shares of Capital A no par value
voting stock and 50,000 authorized shares of Capital B no par value nonvoting stock. As of
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, there were 2,000 Class A shares issued and outstanding and
20,000 Class B shares issued and outstanding.

10. Contingencies
From time to time, the Company may be a party to lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the Company’s management, these matters,

individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
and results of future operations of the Company.
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